Audited Financial Statements 8EZBHEHE

Consolidated Balance Sheet

ReEEEER
31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
-5 —T——F T4
+=ZA=+—H +=-A=+—8 —H—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE BETRT BT T BET T
(Restated) (Restated)
............................................................................................................................... (E25)) ... (EE3)
ASSETS F &
Non-current assets 3 i &) & &=
Property, plant and equipment #)% - #22 % 3% 5 521,674 544,064 566,324
Investment properties 1% & ¥ % 6 1,633,200 1,462,550 1,224,900
Intangible assets & & & 7 122,825 19,589 15,690
Deposits paid for property, plant and equipment
M WBERREZENES 38,676 - -
Investment in associates Bt & A 7] 7 1 & 9 57,746 53,870 57,478
Available-for-sale financial assets AJft HE 7 S @& E 10 225,241 190,252 267,965
Defined benefit plan’s assets & & Mz 5t 2 2 & & 25(a) 63,131 62,429 56,400
Deferred income tax assets iEIEFT ST & & 15 272 429 -
2,662,765 2,333,183 2,188,757
Current assets 5 8 & &=
Inventories 7 & 11 23,138 26,408 20,813
Accounts receivable JEIg Z 1B 12 275,162 244,224 195,618
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
BNER  He REMEKIE 17,375 11,746 11,226
Amount due from an associate [ Y5t & A 7] 2B 9 - 39 61
Short-term bank deposits 43 83381717 2% 25,917 76,117 -
Cash and bank balances 334 & $R 1745 68 27(b) 344,115 324,818 432,663
685,707 683,352 660,381
Total assets 2 & & 3,348,472 3,016,535 2,849,138
EQUITY &R
Capital and reserves & 7N [ f# &
Share capital i 3 156,095 156,005 156,005
Reserves & 2,756,152 : : 2,500,111 : 2,310,743
Proposed dividend %)k % & § 70,248 : : 62,438 i 62,438 :
14(a) 2,826,400 2,562,549 2,373,181
Shareholders’ funds lRE & & 2,982,495 2,718,644 2,529,276
Non-controlling interests 3E32 il 14 # 25 42,129 22,785 21,855
Total equity 42 # %5 3,024,624 2,741,429 2,551,131

..................................................................................................................................................................
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© Audited Financial Statements @&EEHBEE

Consolidated Balance Sheet

GEEERREX

..................................................................................................................................................................

31 December 31 December 1 January
2012 2011 2011
—E-F —T——F —T——%F
+=ZB=+—H +=-A=+—8 —H—H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Bt E BYETT BETT BETT
(Restated) (Restated)
............................................................................................................................... (E5)) ... (EE3)
LIABILITIES & {&
Non-current liabilities 3£ & (&
Deferred income tax liabilities {E{EFT ST & & 15 92,977 83,001 83,876
92,977 83,001 83,876
Current liabilities & & &
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities FEfT ZIB R JEZT B & 16 183,659 158,737 163,102
Amounts due to associates &1 B & /N B 508 9 2,615 2,864 3,171
Subscriptions in advance 78 U 5T & 26,689 24,870 23,041
Current income tax liabilities IR AT BT B & 8,908 5,634 24,817
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder JE#ZE#|1E IR R 72 B3 17 9,000 - -
230,871 192,105 214,131
Total liabilities 42 & (& 323,848 275,106 298,007
Total equity and liabilities E# =Kk & & 3,348,472 3,016,535 2,849,138
Net current assets j7i &) & & )5 & 454,836 491,247 446,250
Total assets less current liabilities 2248 EF A8 A& 3,117,601 2,824,430 2,635,007
REMBRE L —HD o

The notes on pages 111 to 174 are an integral part of these BB EFE1748 2 AL

consolidated financial statements.

Dr. David J. Pang Ms. Kuok Hui Kwong
HEREL BEXRXL

Chairman Director

IR £
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Audited Financial Statements SE&HBHE -

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GEZHREXR

Year ended 31 December 202 B EZ —E——F+ - A=+—HILEE

..................................................................................................................................................................

2012 2011
- —E——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt s BETT BEFIT
(Restated)
...................................................................................................................................................... (1 25)
Revenue I & 4 1,019,610 946,083
Other income E U A 8,390 11,826
Staff costs 8 T A2 18 (382,585) (364,319)
Cost of production materials 4 & R &K K (170,587) (134,160)
Rental and utilities & & 3% (25,588) (19,584)
Depreciation and amortisation 37 £ I f# &5 (55,027) (52,588)
Advertising and promotion & &S & (38,736) (29,939)
Other operating expenses £ &8 & 51 &z (157,797) (147,927)
Fair value gain on investment properties & & 4% A (B I 25 6 170,650 237,650
Operating profit {2 = & 7 19 368,330 447,042
Finance income 817 4% A 20 4,818 4,471
Share of profits of associates J&{k Bt & 2 7] & 1l 6,773 1,492
Profit before income tax [ 5 RET = ) 379,921 453,005
Income tax expense FT{5%i F % 21 (33,991) (30,154)
Profit for the year 2 £ & 7 345,930 422,851
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Eth 2 FEIt A~ (E58)
Fair value gain/(loss) on available-for-sale financial assets
AEHEzeMEEZ ATFERS (BE) 34,981 (93,750)
Currency translation difference 9MEE &= %8 6,732 (2,329)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax
2EHM2ERA(HR) (BRRE) 41,713 (96,079)
Total comprehensive income for the year 2 £ 2 H Ut A {2 387,643 326,772
Profit attributable to E{§ & F) :
Shareholders of the Company &2 A]f% & 22 329,059 409,921
Non-controlling interests FE#2 &1 1% #E 25 16,871 12,930
345,930 422,851
Total comprehensive income attributable to FE{5 2 HUg A ¥ #8 :
Shareholders of the Company A2 &% & 370,772 313,842
Non-controlling interests JE#22 14 fE 25 16,871 12,930
387,643 326,772
Earnings per share Sk 27|
Basic and diluted Z78 & 858 24 21.08 cents #{ll 26.26 cents Bl
The notes on pages 111 to 174 are an integral part of these FNBRBIAR T AREHREMBRER 2 —HD
consolidated financial statements.
Dividends % € 23 117,076 124,876

..................................................................................................................................................................
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© Audited Financial Statements @&EXHEEE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERZZHX

Year ended 31 December 20R HZE—T——F+_A=+—HIFE

..................................................................................................................................................................

Attributable to shareholders of the company

FAFIRRELR
Non-
controlling
Share Share Contributed Other  Retained interests Total
capital  premium surplus  reserves profits Total  FEfRGIM equity

BEx ROHAR BARR HURE GEERA 5] ga s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT ABTr A¥TT  BETx  ABTn  A%Tr  B%TR  BETx
Note14(a)  Note 14(a)
M@  FIF14()

..................................................................................................................................................................

Balance at 1 January 2011, as previously reported

RZZ——F—-F—-R&H  DEFHIHR 156,095 40,971 865,672 175200 1,199,086 2,437,024 2855 2,458,879
Adjustment for change in accounting policy (Note 2)
SHEREH 2 AR (Mi2) - - - 4,404 87,848 92,252 - 92,252
Balance at 1 January 2011, as restated

R-BE——EF—-A—-R&H  KE] 156,095 40,971 865,672 179,604 1,286,934 2,529,276 21,855 2,551,131
Comprehenswe income 2EIA
Profit for the year, as restated A E[E B 7| » K& - - - - 409,921 409,921 12,930 422,851
Other comprehensive loss £ {12 E 518 - - - (96,079) - (96,079) - (96,079)
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
2EKA/(BR) &8 - - - (96,079) 409,921 313,842 12,930 326,772

Transactions with shareholders B EZ X 5
Employee share-based compensation benefits

PRS2 BEMERER - - - 402 - 402 - 402
Dividends % &, - - (62,438) - (62,438)  (124,876) (12,0000 (136,876)
Total transactions with shareholders

HERZXHE0 - - (62,438) 402 (62,438)  (124,474) (12000)  (136,474)
Balance at 31 December 2011, as restated

R-E——F+ZH=+—A%&K EEY 156,095 40,971 803,234 83,927 1,634,417 2,718,644 22,185 2,741,429
Balance at 1 January 2012, as previously reported

RZE-ZF-F—-R&H%  PEHIIR 156,095 40,971 803,234 79523 1,507,356 2,587,179 22,785 2,609,964
Adjustment for change in accounting policy (Note 2)

SHIREY  HE(M2) - - - 4,404 127,061 131,465 - 131,465
Balance at 1 January 2012, as restated

RZS-ZF-A—-HER KEH 156,095 40971 803,234 83,927 1,634,417 2,718,644 22,785 2,741,429
Comprehensive income 2 E i A

Profit for the year A E[E B 7 - - - - 329,059 329,059 16,871 345,930
Other comprehensive income E {1 2 47 A - - - 4,713 - 4,713 - 4,713
Total comprehensive income 2 H it A 5 - - - 41,713 329,059 370,772 16,871 387,643

Transactions with shareholders Bl RZ X 5
Employee share-based compensation benefits

NRESZ 2 EEMSRH - - - 2,345 - 2,345 - 2,345
Dividends fi% 5. - - - - (109,266)  (109,266) (13,500)  (122,766)
Non-controlling interest arising on business combination

EBAMEE FEH R - - - - - - 15,973 15973
Total transactions with shareholders

BRREZXH8HE - - - 2,345 (109,266)  (106,921) 2,473 (104,448)
Balance at 31 December 2012

RIE-ZF+ZP=+—-HE% 156,095 40,971 803,234 127,985 1,854,210 2,982,495 42,129 3,024,624

..................................................................................................................................................................

The notes on pages 111 to 174 are an integral part of these FBIUMEEFI74E WAL SHEAMBRE 2 —2 5
consolidated financial statements.
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Audited Financial Statements SE&HBHE -

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

vear ended 31 December 202 HEZE =T ——F +-A=+—HLFE

..................................................................................................................................................................

2012 2011
—E—_F —T——%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
........................................................................................................... M. BRTE  BETE
Cash flows from operating activities 2 EFBEIZ R R E
Cash generated from operations B 4+ v B 4 27(a) 247,960 196,578
Hong Kong profits tax paid & {5 & /& 8|55 (30,317) (50,418)
Overseas tax paid & /& 9MH 18 (424) (245)
Net cash generated from operating activities & & ;E8)E L 7 /FRE 217,219 145,915
Cash flows from investing activities It FEHZH &R E
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
BAME BMERZEREFEE (71,682) (34,252)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BE ARt HEZ £ RLEE - (16,036)
Decrease/(increase) in short-term bank deposits with original
maturity of more than three months
FREBE-MAZEBMRIERZRL,(Mm) 50,200 (76,117)
Increase in restricted bank deposits 5 [& 7 177F 32X 2 18 1 (25,258) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary U BBt B A 7 31 (75,144) -
Interest received 2 Y F & 4,987 4,120
Dividends received from 2 4 f% 2.
Listed investments 1% & 2,862 2,903
Associates B & 2 & 4,241 2,455
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
HEME BERRERER 380 43
Net cash used in investing activities #¥ & BFT A 2 %8 4 (109,414) (116,884)
Cash flows from financing activities R E FEIZ R R E
Dividends paid to a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
ERT-HNB AR ER 2 RE (13,500) (12,000)
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders 24 T AR 7% 2 fZ & 23 (109,266) (124,876)
Short term loan from a non-controlling shareholder FE3% & M ix 8 7 S HAE 2 9,000 -
Net cash used in financing activities gt & /EE T 2 FH & (113,766) (136,876)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents I3 & &30 & £ & 7 %/ (5,961) (107,845)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—B 2B & MRS EE 324,818 432,663
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December KT —A=1 "R RSRREFE  270) . 38,857 ... 324,818
The notes on pages 111 to 174 are an integral part of these FMBEFI4EZMFARERAVBERRZ —HD

consolidated financial statements.
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© Audited Financial Statements @&EXHEEE

Balance Sheet

EEREX

..................................................................................................................................................................

2012 2011
—E—_F —E——F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
........................................................................................................... g . EBRTET BRI
ASSETS § &
Non-current assets 3R 8 & &

Interests in subsidiaries fff & A 7] 7 # % 8 1,484,382 1,350,223
Current assets &) & &

Cash and cash equivalents 3 ¢ R IR 4 % E 27(b) 812 812
Total assets 424 & 1,485,194 1,351,035
EQUITY &S
Capital and reserves & 7 [ ({5

Share capital 7 13 156,095 . 156,095

Reserves £ & 1,258,851 : : 1,132,502 :

Proposed dividend #tk I% 2 : 70,248 : 62,438

14(h) 1,329,099 1,194,940
Total equity 2125 1,485,194 1,351,035
The notes on pages 111 to 174 are an integral part of these FINEBEZZI748 7 MEANEGAVBREZ —n o

consolidated financial statements.

Dr. David J. Pang Ms. Kuok Hui Kwong
HEPHEL BEXRXL

Chairman Director

IR B=x
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Audited Financial Statements SE&HBHE -

Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR T

2.

(a)

(b)
0]

Corporate information

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability. Its principal place of business
is Morning Post Centre, 22 Dai Fat Street, Tai Po Industrial
Estate, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company acted as an investment holding company
during the year. The principal activities of the Group during
the year comprised the publishing, printing, and distribution
of the South China Morning Post, Sunday Morning Post,
various magazines and other related print and digital
publications, and properties investment.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have heen consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”).
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties and available-for-sale financial assets, as further
explained below.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

The following amendments to standards that are relevant to
the Group are mandatory for the first time for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2012.

HKAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’

In December 2010, the HKICPA amended HKAS 12, ‘Income
taxes’, to introduce an exception to the principle for the
measurement of deferred tax assets or liabilities arising
on an investment property measured at fair value. HKAS
12 requires an entity to measure the deferred tax relating
to an asset depending on whether the entity expects to
recover the carrying amount of the asset through use or
sale. The amendment introduces a rebuttable presumption
that an investment property measured at fair value is
recovered entirely by sale. The amendment is applicable
retrospectively to annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2012 with early adoption permitted.

(a)

(b)
()

LFEH
KRElB—HREREIMK I EREEREERT - AR
Al FEEEMMBERNMA R IERRBEER2NEERR
B o

ARARAFEAREZRLAF - ARERFAZIBERE
B ERRDE(HERR) (EHAHERH)  5X%
R EMEEERREFHDARDERE -

EREHRREE
REAVBEHREMEAZ B GHPERITINT - REHFIHA
o HEEHBREERERRMAEZRFE

RREE

ARBHRRDREBEHBREEA([FERFHRS LR R
B AMBREDREELRAER LR - EREME KA
HHEZEMEENREMHEIR - TXEE-SML -

B BEZRBREE

UTRARERHZ R ZEITAR T ——F—A—AHK
BT B RGR R

BEGENE12RPEHR]

EREEMAGR _Z-ZTFET _ARBEGHERE RS
[FEHRIELER  BRATEAEZREMEMSIRZEL
BMBEEXREZTERASIA-EPIIMER - BEGTESR
FRGATERMAE-HEAEABCETRER  ARTER
BHRRERAIHERBEEMREEREE - ZEFT5IA—
BAHBZERER  IRAVETEZRENDEZHARBLEN
Wem o ZEFTHERE  BRR-_FT——F—A—-HHAEKH
1R FREHIR - WATRF R -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR T

The Group has adopted this amendment retrospectively for
the financial year ended 31 December 2012 and the effects
of adoption are disclosed as follows.

As disclosed in Note 6, the Group has investment properties
measured at their fair values totalling HK$1,462,550,000 as
of 1 January 2012 (HK$1,224,900,000 as of 1 January 2011).
As required by the amendment, the Group has re-measured
the deferred tax relating to investment properties according
to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely by sale retrospectively. The comparative
figures for 2011 have been restated to reflect the change in
accounting policy, as summarized below.

..............................................................................

Effect on consolidated balance sheet

HEaRERARCIEER

..............................................................................

..............................................................................

..............................................................................

Effect on consolidated income statement

HEolaiRzvE

..............................................................................

Decrease in income tax expense 715 %4 B = il >

Increase in net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company

ADBIIREEFEFIE

Increase in basic and diluted earnings per share & % 78 K #5358 Z 7)€ 10

..............................................................................

]- ]- 2 SCMP Group ANNUAL REPORT 2012

AEEEREE-T -+ A=+ —BUEVBRFEEHR
MULTRIER] - RV ZFEDT -

BT R AEER -_E——F—-A-ARATEE
BIRE BT 51,462,550,00008 T(R_E——F—F—
H£1,224,900,000/8 L) - AEEDREZEBITZ2ER  Bi%
BREMEZHRBBLEZHAWEFMEI BB EREFTE
BAZECHE  WEPEUEED - —T——EFEZ2HRHF
BEVIARM TR 228 - WHMWT -

..............................................................................

31 December 31 December 1 January

2012 2011 2011

k- =Lt 3 —E——F —E——F
+ZRA=+—-H +ZA=+—H —A—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
.................... RWTE L LLABTILLLLBETR
159,622 131,465 92,252

4,404 4,404 4,404

155,218 127,061 87,848

..............................................................................

..............................................................................

For the year ended 31 December

§EZE+_-_A=1+—HL=EE
2012 2011
—E2-_F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
........................................... #WTT  EETR
28,157 39,213
28,157 39,213

1.80 cents #fll  2.51 cents J&

..............................................................................



Audited Financial Statements SE&HBHE -

Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR T

(ii)

New standards, amendments and interpretations, that are
relevant to the Group, have been issued but are not effective
for the financial year beginning 1 January 2012 and have not
been early adopted.

Applicable for
accounting periods
beginning on/after

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 (amendments),
‘Mandatory effective date and

transition disclosures’ 1 January 2015
HKFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ 1 January 2015
HKFRS 10, ‘Consolidated Financial

Statements’ 1 January 2013
HKFRS 12, ‘Disclosure of Interests in

Other Entities’ 1 January 2013
HKFRS 13, ‘Fair Value Measurements’ 1January 2013
HKAS 1 (amendment), ‘Presentation

of Items of Other Comprehensive

Income’ 1 July 2012
HKAS 19 (amendment), ‘Employee

Benefits’ 1January 2013
HKAS 27 (revised 2011), ‘Separate

financial statements’ 1January 2013
HKAS 28 (revised 2011), ‘Associates and

Joint Ventures’ 1 January 2013
HKAS 32 (amendment), ‘Financial

instruments: Presentation’ on asset

and liability offsetting 1 January 2014

The Group will adopt the above new or revised standards,
amendments and interpretations to existing standards as
and when they become effective. The Group has already
commenced the assessment of the impact to the Group and
is not yet in a position to state whether these would have a
significant impact on its results of operations and financial
position.

(ii)

HASEEBIERMER_S——F—A—HRBZITBF
ERAERN  BREFRANER - BT RRE -

BRI B sk
PAR B Z
SEHHIA

BEMBREEUNEIRLERYBRE

AERIFOFR (BRTA)[ s Hl 1 £ %A 5

BB E —T-R%¥—F—H
EEVBHREENSZR&mMTA] —HF—A—H
BB HREEREI05 748

Hx —E—=F—A—H
ERPBHREERF R Ha B EEs

RE| —T—=%—F—H
EEVBERESENEBRIAFEHFE] —T—=F-—F—H
EEEHENBIR(BIN) EHMEHE

WATEE 2 27 | ——%+A—H
EBEHERF15 (BTN RS

BFI —=ZF—A—8
EEEHELE2IR(ZT——FEFT)

[ B B iRk —=%#—A—H
EEGHERE285 (ZF——F{E5])

[BME DA RAEhE] —ET—=%—F—H
EBEHERERF(BFTAR)

[CRTE: 27 EHEER

B EIK —T-mE—F—H

AEEBR LA HBETER  RERAET RBELENR
B LRS- REBCREREH RGBT EELE 1§
fﬁﬁ%ﬁxﬁﬂiﬁ%ﬁuﬁiéﬁﬂ?%E’]i“‘%%i‘&ﬁﬁ%#ﬁLﬁX
BARE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR T

(c)

(M

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from their activities. This power is deemed to exist
when the Group has a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights in an entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net assets.

Interests in subsidiaries in the Company’s balance sheet
are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

]- ]- 4 SCMP Group ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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ioy= NG

MEBRRAEASEEREEEMBE R EERRLELZHEN
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR T

(i) Transactions with non-controlling interests (i) HEIEFHMERZZ
The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests REEBEEFTS R RIEREREEESERG AL
as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For AZRHEE - FRFEZHERZKERS - AREHTRER
purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference EHEEMBEHELR 7@5@?%@@2?}5 TR E=m A
between any consideration paid and the relevant share R ARGEEHMERETREMEE BRI BRENTRER
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary AALR ©

is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(iii) Associates (DN
Associates are all entities over which the Group has HERBEASBEHEAEAYEEETHR AAERE
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying ;‘}Qﬁﬁ 5 EEA O E20%E50% S RERE BN - REEE
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting REIZERDUAEREANR - WK ARER  AEE R
rights. Interests in associates are accounted for by the BRAZRERERKEREH 2B (ENRIMNEER
equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at EERE) -

cost. The Group’s interests in associates include goodwill
identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment

loss.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses $%@E§45H§%%’A ARMERECBERERESE D BFIALR
and post-acquisition movements in reserves of associates SEERREARER -  RRNEREHNREREEED
is included in the Group’s profit or loss and consolidated o ﬁ“ﬂﬁilbﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁfé’z} AEEENNBBERNEE AR 2
reserves respectively. The cumulative post-acquisition En(BREWEMEERRERER)  AEETSH—PER
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the BE BRIECELBBIARBEARELIM -

investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether ZIS%@E’\RiﬁiEIHﬂFE%EﬁEHHﬁ%%Q BZRERELE
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the BRE - MAZSTERE  RAEHEANE QR Y EFE
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates RERAEZZE  TRRERPERAIEHBEARAETF ]
the amount of impairment as the difference between the ERRIE

recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profits of
associates’ in the income statement.

(d) Segment reporting (d) 2BHRE
DHZERFAEREETTELEARAREZ AL RE —
TERERRERTAAERTREE  BEREEDY
R e R AT -

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent =
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 3
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, 2%
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified

as the Group’s Chief Executive Officer.
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(ii)

(iii)

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$™), which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Translation differences on investments in equity instruments
classified as available for sale financial assets are included
in the investment revaluation reserve.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available for
sale are analysed between translation differences resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in equity.

Group companies

On consolidation, the balance sheet of subsidiaries and
associates denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date
whilst the statement of comprehensive income is translated
at an average rate. The resulting translation differences
are included in the translation reserve. When any of these
subsidiaries or associates is sold, any translation differences
previously recognised in respect of such subsidiary or
associate are transferred to the profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when these
benefits can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) on the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer provided that the Group retains neither
continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

(i) newspaper advertisements and other services, based
on the period in which such services are rendered;

(iii) rental income, in the period in which the properties

are let out and on the straight-line basis over the lease

terms.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than assets in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an
asset comprises its purchase price and any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Cost may also include
transfers from hedging reserve of any gains/losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment. Assets in
progress represents property, plant and equipment under
construction or instalment and is not yet ready for use. They
are transferred to the respective category of property, plant
and equipment when they are ready for use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

()
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Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes
available for its intended use. Amortisation on leasehold
land classified as finance lease and depreciation on other
assets is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost or revalued amounts to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
— Leasehold land classified Remaining lease term
as finance lease

— Leasehold buildings
— Plant and machinery
— Other fixed assets

— leasehold improvements

25 to 50 years
10 to 20 years

Shorter of remaining lease
term of 2 to 50 years or
useful life

3to 4 years

3010 years

— computer equipment
— others

No depreciation/amortisation is provided for assets in
progress.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties that are held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Investment
properties are measured initially at costs, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair values, with changes in fair
values recognised in the profit or loss. The methods used to
determine the fair values of the investment properties are
set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure on an investment property is
included in the asset’s carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes.
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If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value
of this property at the date of transfer is recognised as a
movement in the asset revaluation reserve. However, if a
fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain
is recognised in the profit or loss.

Leases
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease periods.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Investment properties acquired under finance
leases are carried at their fair value.

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired.

Goodwill acquired in relation to subsidiaries is allocated to
cash-generating units and is presented as an intangible asset
in the consolidated balance sheet.

Goodwill is tested at least annually for impairment and
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying
amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Publishing titles

Publishing titles with a finite useful life are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of the publishing titles over their
estimated useful lives.
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Publishing titles with an indefinite useful life are tested at
least annually for impairment. They are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Publishing titles that have been fully amortised in prior
years have not been restated. They are included in the
financial statements at zero carrying amounts.

Software cost

Computer software licences are capitalised based on their
purchase price and direct cost of preparing the assets for
their intended use.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the
design and testing of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Group are recognised as
intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

— it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

— management intends to complete the software product
and use or sell it;

— thereis an ability to use or sell the software product;

— it can be demonstrated how the software product will
generate probable future economic benefits;

— adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
software product are available; and

— the expenditure attributable to the software product
during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of
the software product include the software development
employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense are
not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Software costs recognised as assets are amortised using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
ranging from five to seven years.
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(k)

U]
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Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The
customer relationships have a finite useful life and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over the
expected life of 15 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite life are tested at
least annually for impairment. Intangible assets with a finite
life and other property, plant and equipment are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
assets is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss
is recognised to reduce the carrying amount of the assets
to their recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are
recognised in the profit or loss except where an item of
property, plant and equipment has been revalued and the
impairment loss does not exceed the balance in the asset
revaluation reserve, in which case the impairment loss is
recognised as a reduction in the asset revaluation reserve.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in either one of the
following categories: loans and receivables, and available
for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. The Group’s loans and receivables
comprise ‘accounts receivables’ and ‘cash and cash
equivalents’ in the balance sheet.

Accounts receivable are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of accounts receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Accounts receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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(M

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less. Interest income on bank deposits calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of finance
income.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are investments in equity
and debt instruments that are designated in this category.

Purchases and sales of available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. They are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs and
subsequently carried at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the profit or loss as
‘gains and losses from available-for-sale financial assets’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as part of other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established. Interest on available-
for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of finance income.

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. When such evidence exists,
an allowance for impairment is established. The amount of
the allowance is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the profit or loss.
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(n)

(o)
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Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that the available-for-sale
financial assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from investment
revaluation reserve and recognised in the profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in the profit or loss on equity
instruments are not reversed through the profit or loss. If,
in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available for sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise of printing materials and
consumables are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are stated at weighted
average cost. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling price less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The par value of
the shares issued and fully paid is recognised in the share
capital account. Any excess of proceeds from a new issue
of shares (net of any incremental costs directly attributable
to the new issue) over the par value of the shares issued is
recognised in the share premium account.

Accounts payable

Accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the amount can be made.

A contingent liahility is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
it will then be recognised as a provision.

Employee benefits
Employee retirement schemes

The Group operates four staff retirement schemes
comprising a defined benefit pension (“DB”) scheme, a
defined contribution pension (“DC”) scheme, a Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF”) and a Top-up (“Top-up”) scheme for
its employees, the assets of which are held separately from
those of the Group in independently administered funds. The
retirement schemes are generally funded by payments from
employees and by the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the DB scheme are made based
on the periodic recommendations of independent qualified
actuaries. Pension cost are assessed using the projected unit
credit method: the cost of providing pensions is charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
so as to spread the regular cost over the service lives of
employees in accordance with the advice of the actuaries
who carry out a full valuation of the plans. The pension
obligation is measured as the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market yields of
Government securities which have similar terms as the
related liabilities. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
over the average remaining service lives of employees. Past
service costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the average period until the benefits become
vested.
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(ii)

(r)

Contributions to the DC, MPF and Top-up schemes are
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as incurred. For the DC and Top-up schemes,
the amounts charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income may be reduced by contributions
forfeited by employees who leave these schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

Share-based compensation

The Company has a share option scheme which is a part of
remuneration policy with rewards determined based upon
the performance of the Group and individual employees.
The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of options is recognised as an expense in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and credited to the employee share-based compensation
reserve. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, taking into account the vesting conditions.
At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to be vested, and
the impact taken to the profit or loss, and corresponding
adjustment to the employee share-based compensation
reserve.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital and share
premium when the options are exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.

Current and deferred income tax

Income tax expense is the aggregate amount included in
the determination of profit or loss for the year in respect of
current tax and deferred tax.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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(s)

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liahilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders, or directors, where appropriate.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are discussed below.

Defined benefit plan’s assets

Determining the carrying amount of defined benefit plan’s
assets requires actuarial assumptions made in respect of
discount rate, rate of return on plan assets and rate of
future salary increases. Changes to these assumptions could
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amount in the balance sheet. Details of
these actuarial assumptions are set out in note 25(a) to the
financial statements.

Fair value of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties is performed in
accordance with the “valuation Standards on Valuation
of Properties” published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The valuation is reviewed semi-annually by
qualified valuers by considering the information from a
variety of sources including but not limited to:

(i) comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market; and

(ii) rental income derived from the existing tenancies with
due provision for any reversionary income potential.

Details of the valuation approach adopted for the Group’s
investment properties are disclosed in Note 6 to the
financial statements.

Changes to the assumptions used in deriving the valuation
could have a significant risk of causing and material
adjustment to the carrying amounts in the balance sheet.

Carrying value of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(j). Determining whether goodwill is
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use, which
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Changes to any of these estimates may result in a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of goodwill in
the balance sheet.
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Revenue and segment information
The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, who reviews the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The Group has three reportable segments: newspaper,
magazine and property. Newspaper segment is engaged
in the publication of South China Morning Post, Sunday
Morning Post and other related print and digital
publications. It derives its revenue mainly from advertising
and sales of newspapers. Magazine segment is engaged in
the publication of various magazines in Chinese language
and related print and digital publications. Its revenue is
derived from advertising and sales of magazines. Property
segment holds various commercial and industrial properties
in Hong Kong. It also owns advertising billboards for outdoor
advertising. It derives revenue through leasing out its
properties and billboards.

The chief operating decision-maker assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on a number
of measures, including adjusted EBITDA (defined as earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation, other
income and fair value gain on investment properties)
and profit or loss after tax. The Group considers that the
measurement principles for profit or loss after tax are most
consistent with those used in measuring the corresponding
amounts in the Group’s financial statements. Hence, profit
or loss after tax is used for reporting segment profit or loss.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies except that interest in the profit or loss
of an associates is accounted for on the basis of dividend
received or receivable in segment profit or loss while such
interest is accounted for under the equity method in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services. They
are managed separately because each business requires
different marketing strategies. Transactions between
reportable segments are accounted for on arm’s length
basis.
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Turnover consists of revenue from all of the Group’s
reportable segments, which comprise newspaper,
magazine and property, as well as other segments whose
contributions to the Group’s revenue and profit or loss are
below the quantitative threshold for separate disclosures.

EXTBERREAEEMBUREIB(BRERE - BZED
E)ZWHENREAREE RS RBEZERERERRE
MESEZAEMYHBRE - BE-_T——FR-_T—F
TZA=ZT—BLEFEZEEEH 5 51,019,610,0007% T &
946,083,000/ JT °

The turnover for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011
were HK$1,019,610,000 and HK$946,083,000 respectively.

Revenue from newspapers, magazines and other
publications included revenue of HK$4,989,000 (2011:
HK$4,261,000) arising from exchanges of goods or services
with third parties.

KARE  HFAREMTONOESEFEEEZ A BERIR
TEFTEE S 2 254,989,000/ 7L (—ZF ——F 14,261,000/ 7C) °

Substantially all the activities of the Group are based in
Hong Kong and below is segment information by reportable
segments:

AEBARLAAEBENELRES  TRETRESHE
PZHWERMT :

(a) Reportable segment profit or loss (a) THRESHEE

............................................................................................................................................................

For the year ended 31 December 2012 Newspaper Magazine Property All other Total
BF-_S-——Ff+-A=+—-HL%EE BE M nE REEf @t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
........................................................................... BRTr BRI BRIT  ERTR  BRIX
Total segment revenue 4 & iy 2 773,640 218,846 35,885 - 1,028,371
Inter-segment revenue # B Z K & (981) (5,770) (2,010) - (8,761)
Revenue from external customers S RER Z I 2 772,659 213,076 33,875 - 1,019,610
Finance income Bt It A 3,306 13 - 1,499 4,818
Depreciation and amortisation #7 & & % 8§ (45,149) (4,350) (5,528) - (55,027)
Income tax Fi R (17,118) (11,259) (4,059) - (32,436)
Reportahle segment profit AJ §§ & A 2 F) 97,492 54,173 188,966 4,322 344,953
For the year ended 31 December 2011 Newspaper Magazine Property All other Total
HE-_ZT——F+-A=1+—-HItFEE WE M S B EM B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI BT AR oL
(restated)
eeereeeeeeeseesesenesesereseserssssesseseneseseneseseressssssssseesesenesessnssesesssesenssesereseses FEBILL eereseeseseressssesseseen
Total segment revenue 2 2548 U5 25 779,158 142,151 32,318 - 953,627
Inter-segment revenue 3 £p 8 2 Yizs (672) (5,331) (1,541) - (7,544)
Revenue from external customers §p R & F 7 Uiz 778,486 136,820 30,777 - 946,083
Finance income Bf 784 A 2,964 12 - 1,495 4,471
Depreciation and amortisation 7 & 5 & $5 (45,882) (1,216) (5,490) - (52,588)
Income tax Fr 5 5% (18,195) (8,085) (3,874) - (30,154)
Reportable segment profit 7] 55 72 2f 2 7| 120,523 43,236 255,553 4,502 423,814

............................................................................................................................................................
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(b) Reportable segment information (h) WHmEDHBER
For the year ended 31 December 2012 Newspaper Magazine Property All other Total
BE_Z-—§+-B=+-HLEE RE i nx FREER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
........................................................................... BRI ERTRL BRI BRI BETR
Capital expenditure & & B X 70,938 2,280 363 - 73,581

............................................................................................................................................................

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-_Z——F+-_A=t-HIEFE

Capital expenditure & AN 5§ 57 32,290 1,332 630 - 34,252

............................................................................................................................................................

(c) Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss to () THREIFBEZEZERAYERR
profit for the year

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2012 2011
=g-=—f T &
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TR BB T
(Restated)
................................................................................................................................................ (FEE3)
Profit for reportable segments 7] ¥ & 9 50 & | 340,631 419,312
Profit for all other segments F7 4 H fh 5 2 & 7 4,322 4,502
344,953 423,814
Reconciling items ¥ 8RB R

Share of profits of associates under equity method of accounting
REESSHEEGEEARRT 6,773 1,492
Dividend received from an associate U BB 4 1 & j% 2. (4,241) (2,455)
Deferred tax on undistributed profit of an associate B4 A 7 & 9 Be & 5 2 BT 18 (1,555) -
977 (963)
Profit for the year & 4 Z F 345,930 422,851

............................................................................................................................................................
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B 3% Rk Y 5
5. Property, plant and equipment 5. X BERRE
Leasehold
land and Other fixed
buildings Plant & assets Assets in
HELH machinery Htt progress Total
REF KERBEM EBEEE EREE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

............................................................................................................................................................

Atllanuary 20l =T ——F—F—H

Cost fi¢ 2% 420,375 761,579 124,799 2,386 1,309,139

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

ZBEWMERRESE (102,696) (577,880) (62,239) - (742,815)
Net book value at 1 January 2011

R_E-—F—-A—-A7EKEFE 317,679 183,699 62,560 2,386 566,324

Opening net book value F ]8R & /% & 317,679 183,699 62,560 2,386 566,324

Additions R E - 298 10,143 14,338 24,779

Disposals & - (1) (35) - (36)
Transfer 2§ - 7,658 4,297 (11,955) -

Depreciation ¥ & (9,752) (24,426) (12,836) - (47,014)
Translation differences [& 7 Z %8 - - 1 - 1

Closing net book value 4 K BE B /B {E 307,927 167,228 64,140 4,769 544,064

At 31 December 0l A —ZE——F+-A=+—H

Cost Fi¢ 2% 420,375 769,500 134,109 4,769 1,328,753

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

ZEMERRESE (112,448) (602,272) (69,969) - (784,689)
Net book value at 31 December 2011

RZBE——F+-A=T-BZE@m%E 307,927 167,228 64,140 4,769 544,064

............................................................................................................................................................
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............................................................................................................................................................

Leasehold
land and Other fixed
buildings Plant & assets Assets in
HEL machinery Ht progress Total
REF HBER{Y EE&RE EREE gt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
........................................................................... ARt BRI ERTR A ERTn  EWTn
At1llanuary 202 A=—ZE——F—A—H
Cost f K 420,375 769,500 134,109 4,769 1,328,753
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
ZEMERREESSE (112,448) (602,272) (69,969) - (784,689)
Net book value at 1 January 2012
REFTSETATHZEERE oo, 307,921 ... 167,228 ... 64140 ... 4,769 .......544,064
Opening net book value & ]8R /2 307,927 167,228 64,140 4,769 544,064
Additions /5 & - 10,392 11,233 2,766 24,391
Disposals 1} & - (1) (443) - (444)
Transfer &% - 3,820 3,195 (7,015) -
Depreciation #7 & (9,753) (23,322) (15,250) - (48,325)
Translation differences [ 2 % &8 - - 3 - 3
Acquisition of a subsidiary 4 Kt & 2 7] - - 1,985 - 1,985
Closing net book value ERBEFE. ..o, 20818 B8 64863 ... 20 .58
At 31 December 0R R—ZE——F+-A=+—H
Cost B A 420,375 776,042 147,874 520 1,344,811
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
ZEMERAEESSE (122,201) (617,925) (83,011) - (823,137)
Net book value at 31 December 2012
RZE——F+-A=+—BZE0%E 298,174 158,117 64,863 520 521,674

............................................................................................................................................................

Other fixed assets include computer and office equipment
and leasehold improvements.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings are held under
medium term leases in Hong Kong.
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Investment properties 6. BREME
2012 2011
—E--F —E——10F
HK$’000 HK$’000
.............................................................. BRIT BRI
At1January R—HA—H 1,462,550 1,224,900
Fair value gain A {8 Wz 170,650 237,650
At 31 December ¥+ —A=+—H 1,633,200 1,462,550
Particulars of investment properties held by the Group REBMBEREMERE
Property Type Lease term
.......... R eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeresereseeeseeseeessesseessessesssssseessrissressre s DB eereeereseree R
0] 20th and 21st Floors and Car Parking Spaces Nos. 21, 22 and 23 on 4th Offices and car parking Long
Floor, Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong spaces K
EAFREBERKERRITHO20RAER4EZ21 » 2823 AEMN RAZERABNM
(ii) Ground and 1st Floors, Block B, Ko Fai Industrial Building, 7 Ko Fai Road, ~ Workshop unit Medium
Yau Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong THEMN 5
EENEBESEETRSBIEANEBE T R1E
(iii)  Clear Water Bay Studio, Clear Water Bay Road, A Kung Wan, Hang Hau, Vacant property Medium
New Territories, Hong Kong EEYE A
BENATODREEBKEE 2B KEFTK
(iv) 8th Floor of Block C, Sea View Estate, 8 Watson Road, North Point, Industrial building Medium
Hong Kong I¥KE ]

EALAREREYEE NECESE
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The investment properties were valued by DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ”), an independent professional
valuer. The valuation of investment properties is performed
in accordance with the “valuation Standards on Valuation
of Properties” published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, which defines market value as “the estimated
amount for which a property should exchange on the date of
valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an
arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the
parties each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without
compulsion”. DTZ has derived the valuation of the Group’s
investment properties by making reference to comparable
sales transactions as available in the relevant market or
where appropriate, by capitalising the rental income derived
from the existing tenancies with due provision for the
reversionary income potential of the properties.

In arriving at the valuation of the Clear Water Bay Studio
which is currently vacant (and available for leasing in the
market), the highest and best-use value is determined on
the basis of redevelopment of the site, taking into account
the potential use of the property that is financially feasible,
justifiable and reasonably probable.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, direct operating
expenses of HK$382,000 (2011: HK$927,000) arising from
investment properties that generated rental income and
HK$3,785,000 (2011: HK$3,175,000) arising from investment
properties that did not generate rental income were charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s total future minimum
rental receivables under non-cancelable operating leases for
its investment properties are as follows:

..............................................................................

ZEREMECHMBYERMHEMBERTERAA([RER
TDETHE - REVEOBEDREDTENEMBERMN
[ERMEHENGHEREIET  ZRERTETERMAE
FRMETRET - BETERILAE - SFERLBHRER)

T URETEEZTGERER  ERFRZPHRGBERR
BWYEMEXMNZGEFAHRE] - BERTE2REAHS 2T
HBRHEERS  Z(MER)BRERERNZEEUAER
bt YREMDEROMRRZBERAFLEERE B4
AEBZEEMEMGE -

RIHEREZE (RARTSHE) MEKEERZHROEER -
BEahkEEEERBSHUNENBERLARZMENE LA
7 FEBXFRAENEEAEMET

REBEE-_Z——F+-A=1+—BILFE HoLz2mEkzkRE
HEAEERSWAZEREMESI B B & EE 382,000
BIL(ZZE——F :927,0008 L)  hEAELHRSKAZ
BEMESI Bz EESEEM3,7850008 T (T ——F:
3,175,000/ 7T ) °

RZEBE—ZF+-A=Z+—HB  AEEREEREMEZTA
HECEREZ A RFERERKFELENT

..............................................................................

2012 2011

—=E—= —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... sWTT EETR
Not later than one year FNi8:@— 4 5,890 21,470
Later than one year but not later than five years 88— FE T BB HFE 1,371 10,888
7,261 32,358

..............................................................................
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B RKRM
7. Intangible assets 7. EBE
Other
intangible
Publishing Software Customer assets Assets in
titles costs Goodwill  relationships Hf progress Total
LiRERE  BHRAE mE XPEE EVEE  LREE @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

............................................................................................................................................................

AtlJanuary 00 R = E——F—F—H

Cost A 1,820,000 64,381 - - 1,100 2,111 1,887,592

Accumulated amortisation 2 15 (1,820,000) (51,529) - - (373) - (1,871,902)
Net book value BR T/ 3#HE - 12,852 - - 727 2,111 15,690

Net book value at 1 January 2011

RZE——E-f-AZERFE - 12,852 - - 721 211 15,690

Additions /R E - 819 - - - 8,654 9,473

Reclassification/transfer &2 418 /#4 - 3933 - - - (3933) -

Amortisation £ 35 - (5,548) - - (26) - (5,574)
Net ook value at 31 December 2011

WZB——E+-R=+-B7EA%E - 12,056 - - 701 6,832 19,589

At 31 December 0l A= E——E+-A=+—A

Cost A 1,820,000 69,133 - - 1,100 6,832 1,897,065

Accumulated amortisation 2 &% 54 (1,820,000) (57,077) - - (399) - (1,877,476)
Net book value BR [ % (& - 12,056 - - 701 6,832 19,589

............................................................................................................................................................
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............................................................................................................................................................

Other
intangible
Publishing Software Customer assets Assetsin
titles costs Goodwill relationships 2t progress Total

HREE  BE&RF we EFEE EMEE EREE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B%Tr EBRTT E%TT ERTR ERTRT  ERTR  #%RTR

(Note a)

ceeeeeeeereeeeseeeeeeseseeseseseseesseesseeseseeeesessseeessreseseesesesseseee IR et
At1lanuary 202 R=E——%—F—H
Cost fi; A 1,820,000 69,133 - - 1,100 6,832 1,897,065
Accumulated amortisation 2 &% 4 (1,820,000) (57,077) - - (399) - (1,877,476)
Netbook VAR BEZE | oo 208 e, s o 6832 ...105%
Net book value at 1 January 2012
RIE-—F-R-AZREFE - 12,056 - - 701 6,832 19,589
Additions /R & - 2,196 - - - 8,318 10,514
Reclassification/transfer & ¥ 748 / E - 10,985 - - - (10,985) -
Amortisation £ 4 - (4,562) - (2,042) (98) - (6,702)
Acquisition of a subsidiary 4 #ff? & /2 7] - - 38,105 61,247 n - 99,424
Net book value at 31 December 2012
RIBTZRISASITRZEERE o T 20675 ......38105 39205 L 65 hles ... 12285
At 31 December 02 R —E——E+-f=1—H
Cost fi A& 1,820,000 82,314 38,105 61,247 1,172 4,165 2,007,003
Accumulated amortisation 2 &% 4 (1,820,000) (61,639) - (2,042) (497) - (1,884,178)
Netbook VAR BEEZE | et e 20675 ,.....38105 39205 65 . hles ... 12285
Note a: fizEa

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more
frequently if there are indications that it might be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test, the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units is determined based on value in use calculations.
These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period. Cash flows beyond the three-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rates stated below. The growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
magazine business in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations in 2012 are as
follows:

2.5%
17.8%

Growth rate
Discount rate

Assuming growth rate decreased by 50 basis point and discount
rate increased by 50 basis point, there is still adequate headroom
and no impairment charge is required.
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8. Interests in subsidiaries 8. HELARIZESR
Company
N
2012 2011
—ZT—_§ —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... sWIT L EETZT
Unlisted shares, at costs 3E_ i1 f% {5 i 25 (& - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries J& Wrfff & A 7] 8 X 1,484,382 1,350,223
1,484,382 1,350,223
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- EYHBARIRRAERAE  REEBTSHERERE -
free and will not be demanded for repayment.
Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 33 to FTEMBRAR ZFBHN T BERERME3S -
the financial statements.
9. Investment in associates 9. BIEAFIZRE
2012 2011
—£2-- —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... swIT L EETZT
Associates H & A 7]
Share of net assets other than goodwill JE{5FEE (T EERE) !
Shares listed overseas J&4h %7 45,177 41,275
Unlisted shares 3F F 1 % {7 5,679 5,895
50,856 47,170
Goodwill pH& 6,890 6,700
57,746 53,870
Amount due from an associate JEHSZ &\ A IE - 39
Amounts due to associates fE{JEE & /N T ,%’ 18 (2,615) (2,864)
Amounts due to associates (net) e+ B 4 A 73008 (%58 ) (2,615) (2,825)
Fair value of shares held in a listed associate in Thailand
i —RR R LMl ERARRN cAFE 124,338 73,795
The amounts due to associates are unsecured and interest- ENBMARNRZEAEKAERES o
free.
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Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s REBBERRZHEERBESHIWOT

associates is set out below:

............................................................................................................................................................

2012 2011
—E—_F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BT T
Total assets 424 & 520,794 477,794
Total liabilities 2 & f& (294,476) (268,989)
Net assets /% & & 226,318 208,805
Group’s share of associates’ net assets 7 £2 B i {5 i & A RS 50,856 47,170
Revenue U 607,682 488,292
Profits for the year A [ & F| 32,187 15,271
Group’s share of associates’ profits for the year 7K & & fE (Bt & A 7] & 7 6,773 1,491
Details of the principal associates are set out in Note 33 to TEBEARZFBENMBREMEIS -
the financial statements.
10. Available-for-sale financial assets 10. T@HHEZEMEE
2012 2011
—E-_§ —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
At market value T 1&
Equity shares, listed in Hong Kong & & - f&1p 198,491 164,600
Guaranteed notes denominated in US$, listed in Singapore ¥ 003 £ 7 ETEREE 26,750 25,652
225,241 190,252
11. Inventories 11. 8
2012 2011
—E—= —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRETT BT T
Raw materials Rk} 23,138 26,408

............................................................................................................................................................

The cost of inventories recognised as expense during the
year was HK$78,773,000 (2011: HK$71,296,000).
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12. Accounts receivable 12. B RIE
The Group allows an average credit period of 7 to 90 days REBLETFTEESFIEPFNIEHERBRALHENTH  EW
to its trade customers and an ageing analysis of accounts REZEBEITIT

receivable is as follows:

............................................................................................................................................................

2012 2011
—E—_F —T——F
Balance  Percentage Balance Percentage
wes B R B
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
................................................................................... BT BB D
Current 3 Hf 153,240 55.0 134,640 54.3
Less than 30 days past due @8 >R =+H 21,144 7.5 21,570 8.7
31to 60 days past due BEi = +—HZE X+ H 55,135 19.8 52,352 21.1
61to 90 days past due B E#IX+—HENA+H 33,940 12.2 29,411 11.9
Over 90 days past due & # % ¥ L+ H 15,278 5.5 9,889 4.0
Total 4258 278,737 100.0 247,862 100.0
Less: Allowance for impairment J& : J5i {8 5 & (3,575) (3,638)
275,162 244,224
Accounts receivable that are neither past due nor impaired 98 H N 4 IR R (B 2 MR SR TR B152,773,0008 T ( ZF — —
amounted to HK$152,773,000 (2011: HK$133,889,000). % :133,889,00087L) - REEHR S RRZ T RBER L
These bhalances relate to a wide range of customers for BP .
whom there was no recent history of default.
Below is an ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are R BHEBEERHRERE BEFIE L RROTAT
past due as at the reporting date but not impaired:
2012 2011
—E-CF¥ —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... RETE | EETL
Less than 30 days past due @8R =+H 20,796 21,229
31to 60 days past due B HI=+—HZ X+ H 54,625 51,515
6110 90 days past due @E#X+—HZENTH 33,508 29,141
Over 90 days past due B Ei Z L+ H 13,460 8,450
Total accounts receivable past due but not impaired
B8 BB R IR R E < e B B R 122,389 110,335
Accounts receivable past due but not impaired represent BEEAREBRRE L BRRBERNSERBEATLRRAT
balances that the Group considered to be fully recoverable BHWE &8 - ZEEBRENABE 2R SRS HIRITER
based on past experience. A portion of these balances {ERIKH -
is secured by cash deposit placed by customers or bank
guarantees.
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The movements in the allowance for impairment during the FROREREZESHMNT -
year are as follows:

............................................................................................................................................................

2012 2011
—Ee--%§ —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... BRIT LEETT
At1January A —A—H 3,638 4,757
Impairment provision made & £ H i (B 5 & 4,162 2,907
Amounts written off as uncollectible FAZN 8] i [B1 85 T LA 3 2 & 48 (808) (948)
Impairment provision reversed & # B 5 & & & (3,417) (3,078)
At 31 December R+ =-A=+—H 3,575 3,638
The Group assesses its accounts receivable individually AEEe@ERTEEEEZFBELEEEATWREYE - mERZURE
to determine their recoverability and the allowance for BEDRELERZSTEAEL 2B E - WE?%%ZiEK,%
impairment account is used to record the provision made BER—BERBHEANBBRTZET  MEALERAZEER
as a result of such assessments. The ending balance of the AL AU o
allowance for impairment represents accounts that were
past due over an extended period of time and the Group
considers that they may not be recoverable.
13. Share capital 13. B¥F
2012 2011
—EB—_ —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BEF T

Authorised Y& E J& 7K
5,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each 5,000,000,000% & AR {E0.1075 7T 500,000 500,000

............................................................................................................................................................

Issued and fully paid 2 277 R B YRR A -
1,560,945,596 (2011: 1,560,945,596) shares of HK$0.10 each

1,560,945,596% (== ——1%F : 1,560,945,596/% ) B E{E0.10/5 T 156,095 156,095
14. Reserves 14. G iR
(@) Group (a) &8
Movements of the Group’s reserves for the year ended 31 AEEBE T —FR-FE——F+-A=+—HLEFEZ
December 2012 and 2011 are presented in the consolidated REEZHBERANEIBEZGAEREHERR -

statement of changes in equity on page 108.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the excess REBZHABBRVE-NNEEREEEARFEANBELQF
of the nominal value of the shares of subsidiaries acquired ZBROHEEBLARFMETIRBROOEE - HEERES
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in Vi ¢

exchange therefor during the Group reorganisation in 1990
less dividend distributions.
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The Group’s other reserves consist of the following REBEMRBEERE TN
components
Employee
share-based
Investment Asset compensation
revaluation  revaluation reserve
reserve reserve  Translation B g
®RE H5E reserve YRHES Total
Btk EfGE ERSFE HMeRF et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AETT BRI ARTT  BETT  BETRH

............................................................................................................................................................

Balance as at 1 January 2011, as previously reported

NZE——F—-A—B&H - WERYIR 176,299 21,713 (22,812) - 175,200
Adjustment for change in accounting policy (Note 2)

SEHBREE 2R (HT2) - 4,404 - - 4,404
Balance as at 1 January 2011, as restated

RNZT——F—A—B&EH  LE] 176,299 26,117 (22,812) - 179,604

Other comprehensive loss X fti 2 0 &5 18
Available-for-sale financial assets A {tt 1 & 7 £ i & &

— Fair value loss debited to equity 5 A% 2 A FEERE (93,750) - - - (93,750)
Exchange difference on consolidation 4 5 8F B E4 V7 [ER =48 - - (2,329) - (2,329)
Total comprehensive loss 2 [ & 18 4 48 (93,750) - (2,329) - (96,079)
Employee share-based compensation benefits

NREZ Nz EEME R - - - 402 402
Balance as at 31 December 2011, as restated

WoE——F+-_H=+—H&es EEH 82,549 26,117 (25,141) 402 83,927
Balance as at 1 January 2012, as previously reported

RZE——F—A—H&%  WERdIH 82,549 21,713 (25,141) 402 79,523
Adjustment for change in accounting policy (Note 2)

SHBREH AR (M) - 4,404 - - 4,404
Balance as at 1 January 2012, as restated

W_E——F—f—A4H K| 82,549 26,117 (25,141) 402 83,927

Other comprehensive income ¥ fth 2 E Ik A
Available-for-sale financial assets A] it £ & 7 £ G & &

— Fair value gain taken to equity 5t A #2572 A FE U 34,981 - - - 34,981
Exchange difference on consolidation 47 5 8k A E4 Z[ERE%E - - 990 - 990
Transferred to profit or loss on termination of a foreign operation

BIEBNEBREABS - - 5,742 - 5,742
Total comprehensive income % 147 A 42 %8 34,981 - 6,732 - 41,713
Employee share-based compensation benefits

RS 2 EEMESBH - - - 2,345 2,345
Balance as at 31 December 2012

R-S——#+-A=+—H%&H 117,530 26,117 (18,409) 2,747 127,985

............................................................................................................................................................
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(b) Company (b) 27
Employee
share-based
compensation
reserve
Share  Contributed BRig Retained
premium surplus %HER profits Total
B naE 0N M & G s REET st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
........................................................................... EETLL L ERTRL L BRTE BRI BETR
At1lanuary 20l R=ZE——%F—A—H 40,971 1,143,550 - 12,986 1,197,507
Profit for the year $¢ EZE - - - 121,907 121,907
Employee share-based compensation benefits
RS 2 EEMSEF - - 402 - 402
2010 final dividend distribution = —Z F K HAk B 5k - (62,438) - - (62,438)
2011 interim dividend distribution =& ——F A HIfZ & 2k - - - (62,438) (62,438)
At 31 December 0L R =F ==& = A=F7H oo A7, LOBLIZ | ... A2 T2 L L1040%0
Atllanuary20R A=ZE—=—F—F—H 40,971 1,081,112 402 72,455 1,194,940
Profit for the year & Z 2 F - - - 241,080 241,080
Employee share-based compensation benefits
Rz EEMEREF - - 2,345 - 2,345
2011 final dividend distribution == ——F K #i % 82k - - - (62,438) (62,438)
2012 interim dividend distribution =& — ZFHh EifR B0k - - - (46,828) (46,828)
At 31 December 202 =T ——F+—-F=+—8 40,971 1,081,112 2,747 204,269 1,329,099
The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result KRR ZHABBTIA—NNEFREBERMEL © AR
of the Group reorganisation in 1990 and represents the BBz RO EERMRBEZHNBRARINBERR ZAHTEE
difference between the nominal value of the Company’s EZEE RRBRBRESREZYE - REBREEEN  HA
shares so allotted and the consolidated net asset value BHRANETBERTHIKFRE o
of the acquired subsidiaries and associate less dividends
distribution. Under Bermudan law, the contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.
In addition, the Company’s share premium of I Ah - AR R F 2 B i B 40,971,000 T ( ZF — —F
HK$40,971,000 (2011: HK$40,971,000) can be distributed 40 971,000/ 7T ) AIEREH R AMBRH DR - HARKER

as fully paid-up bonus shares or applied towards eliminating NElZz RIEEE -
the accumulated losses of the Company.

]- 4 2 SCMP Group ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Audited Financial Statements SE&HBHE -

Notes to the Financial Statements

RTINS

15.

Deferred income tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities are calculated in full on
temporary differences under the liability method using a
principal taxation rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%).

15. BEFRFRAR

EEMEBHRABRRAABANERZERTER RI650(—-F
——F 1 16.5% ) E2HETE -

............................................................................................................................................................

............................................................................................................................................................

Deferred income tax liabilities iE3E FT 1S 7 & (&
Deferred income tax assets iE i FTE T & &

Deferred income tax liabilities (net) IEIEFF SR B & (CFEE)

............................................................................................................................................................

The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities account

is as follows:

............................................................................................................................................................

............................................................................................................................................................

At 1 January, as previously reported ¥ — A —H » 05 A1 53k
Adjustment for change in accounting policy (note 2) & 51

REF 2 FHE(ME2)

Balance at 1 January, as restated A — A —H &4

Charge to profit for the year (note 21) N5 B BRI % (Fzt21)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31) Yz B {8 2 71 (i 2E31)

At 31 December A+ —-A=+—H

2012 2011
—Z--F —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
A¥TT BETT
(Restated)
(feE5)
92,977 83,001
(272) (429)
92,705 82,572
2012 2011
2% —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
A¥TR BT T
214,037 176,128
(131,465) (92,252)
82,572 83,876
16 (1,304)
10,117 —
92,705 82,572

............................................................................................................................................................
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The movements in deferred income tax assets and liahilities
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation
jurisdiction) during the year are as follows:

BIEFSH AR RE ECREHRA— Bl DB 2G5
FRZEHWT

............................................................................................................................................................

Fair value gains
Accelerated tax depreciation on properties Intangihle assets Others Total
mERERE NELTFENE EvEE it ait
Deferred income tax liahilities 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
EREMBRAR -3-2f %% Z§-2fF -%--F Z§-2f -F--F IB-IF -F--fF ZB-Zf T--%
HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

................................................. Wi BTL MR ST MR BTLMNTE BT MR T

{1 lanuary,as previously reported R — A —B - MAAIGIHR 80470 80383 1190 %7 - - 93 LS 2933 180281
Adjustment for change in accounting policy (note 2)
eith%Ey A2 (hn) - - (B4 (1) - - - - () (22%)
Balance at L January, as estated 7 —  — B8 > M 80470 80383 6,465 6,465 - - X L8l 8T8 880
Chargey(credit) to profit for the year
KERARHAR/(GTA) (175) 8 - - - - 632 (259) 45 (1)
Acquistion of a subsidiary (note 31) Yr BB 22 3] (HrsE31) - - - - 10,117 - - - 10,117 -

At 31 December M= f=+-H 80,295 80,470 6,465 6,465 10,117 - 1,555 93 98,432 87,858

Provisions Tax losses Total
7] REER ]
Deferred income tax assets 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
BERBREE 2§ -—T——4% B--§ —T——F IZB-Z —T——F
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
.............................................................. AWTE  EETL  RWTR | BETL RWTR  BuTI
At1January A — A —H (374) (163) (4,912) (3,990) (5,286) (4,153)
Credit to profit for the year
AEZBREFFA (185) (211) (256) (922) (441) (1,133)
At 31 December A+ =~ A =+—H (559) (374) (5,168) (4,912) (5,727) (5,286)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry EEHgE  HEBERB L HBENEZRIESEBRKER
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related MAFNRERE  BEEMEHEESISHER - AEEAAH
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The FAEE R AR ERTU A 2 RERFIAE 18 5260,018,000
Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$260,018,000 (2011: BIL(ZZT——1F : 278,754,000/ 70) + ZEMBEBEZ ER
HK$278,754,000) to carry forward against future taxable HEINT -
income; the expiry dates of these tax losses are shown as
follows:
2012 2011
—E2-=%F —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... RMIE  BETL
Expiring within one year —F N & i 16,321 15,223
Expiring in the second to fifth year & — = £ R E [ m 53,355 72,919
After the fifth year  fL 1% 190,342 190,612
260,018 278,754

............................................................................................................................................................
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16. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 16. B REREMER
Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are the FENFELEAEGERE T IREEFT 2 EMTIE

following accounts payable by invoice date:

............................................................................................................................................................

2012 2011
—F—-F —F—F
Balance  Percentage Balance Percentage
e B o Bt
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
................................................................................... BT B LBETE
O0to30days EZ=+H 22,375 61.7 26,302 76.2
31to 60 days =+—HZE/~+H 9,487 26.2 5,489 15.9
6lto90days X +—HZENTH 3,541 9.8 2,158 6.2
Over 90 days % 1L+ H 829 2.3 586 1.7
Total accounts payable JE{ 3 IB 42 58 36,232 100.0 34,535 100.0
Accrued liabilities fEst & (& 147,427 124,202
Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities
BERAERBIRERE oo eseereseeseens 183,659 s 8,731 e
17. Loan from a non-controlling shareholder 17. RE—BHFEHHBERZIER
The loan from a non-controlling shareholder is unsecured, RE—BFEHERR 2 EREER REBAR—FRNE
interest free and repayable within one year. iz o
18. Staff costs 18. REIHK&E
2012 2011
-5 —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... RMIR BRI
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration (note (a)))
BIR*(BHEEEME(HiE@Q))
Wages and salaries T& & ¥4 363,802 355,170
Employee share-based compensation benefits JA IR X {2 [E E BN & 127 2,345 402

Unutilised leave pay A8 2 & F R H

Pension costs — defined contribution plans Rk & ik & — & LBt a2
Less: Forfeited contributions 35 : &8 Yt 5% i L

Net pension costs — defined contribution plans JFiE {k 4 B A — & 58 ft T 2 15,257 13,254
Pension income — defined benefit plan (note 25(a))

BRESWA — REF =T E (FFFE25(a)) (3,010) (8,339)

382,585 364,319

............................................................................................................................................................
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(@)

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration (a) EERTHAEMNS
The details of the remuneration of each of the Directors and HEZT——F+ A=+ BLEESEERITHRER 2B
the Chief Executive Officer for the year ended 31 December SHBOT
2012 are set out below:
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement Bonuses
and benefits scheme paid and
Directors’ inkind contributions payable
fees He + BUR B 2R Total
EEme EHSHE SRS FEf TE4T - 1]
Name HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE e ANTE  AWTE  RMTE  MRTR  RWTR
Non-executive Directors FUTES
David J. Pang ZER 200 - - - 200
Roberto V. Ongpin Roberto V. Ongpin 100 - - - 100
Khoo Kay Peng iAoy 100 - - - 100
Kuok Khoon Ean® EippC) 150 - _ - 150
Independent Non-executive Directors B FEBRITEE
Ronald J. Arculli BERE 300 - - - 300
Fred Hu Zu Liu AN 150 - - - 150
David Li Kwok Po FHE 200 - - - 200
Wong Kai Man BHR 300 - - - 300
Executive Director HITES
Kuok Hui Kwong® Lyl - 945 30 90 1,065
Chief Executive Officer T8
Robin Hu Yee Cheng@ HLE@ - 3,359 - 3,900 7,259
1,500 4,304 30 3,990 9,824
Notes: MosE
(1) Ms. Kuok Hui Kwong stepped down as Managing Director and (1) FEXLTETAESERKEBERTHES YBEAHTE
Chief Executive Officer and remained an Executive Director E R E——FXNA-tHRARBRER -
with effect from 25 June 2012.
(2) Mr. Robin Hu Yee Cheng was appointed as Chief Executive Q) HMUELABZEATHES B-_ZEZ——F~A-1THHA
Officer with effect from 25 June 2012. A o
(3) Mr. Kuok Khoon Ean resigned as a Non-executive Director with (3) BIBLEBIIHANTESE m_T—=F—AF+N\BRRE

effect from 18 January 2013.
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The details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for

the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out below: I
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Bonuses
and benefits scheme paid and
Directors’ inkind  contributions payable
fees & - EHK RIK Bk Total
EXNE  FRefx ATEIHR FERTTEAT B
Name HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
L et ERTE. LRI BRIR BRI LBEIR
Non-executive Directors ERTER
David J. Pang ZEF 200 - - - 200
Roberto V. Ongpin Roberto V. Ongpin 100 - - - 100
Khoo Kay Peng sl A G 100 - - - 100
Kuok Khoon Ean LBHE 150 - - - 150
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFRTES
Ronald J. Arculli Ef® 300 - - - 300
Fred Hu Zu Liu FLEVN 150 - - - 150
David Li Kwok Po ZEE 200 - - - 200
Wong Kai Man BHR 300 - - - 300
Executive Director BiTE=®
Kuok Hui Kwong F;EKX - 1,324 55 190 1,569
1,500 1,324 55 190 3,069

............................................................................................................................................................

There was no arrangement under which a Director and/or
the Chief Executive Officer waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration in respect of the year.

Directors’ fees paid or payable to Independent Non-
executive Directors during the year were HK$950,000 (2011:
HK$950,000). Directors’ fees received or receivable by
other Non-executive Directors during the year amounted to
HK$550,000 (2011: HK$550,000). Save from the aforesaid,
there were no other emoluments paid or payable to Non-
executive Directors in 2012.

No options were granted to Directors and/or the Chief
Executive Officer to acquire shares of the Company in 2011
and 2012.

BMEEER/RTRLHRBEALRIRERRAERERSF
NZBE -

FRENIENFBLIFNTES 2 EE0E5950,0008 7T
(ZZ——1 :950,000/87T) - FREMIEHITEEE Wk fE
W2 EEHWE A550,0008 (=T ——4F : 550,000/ 7T) ° B
EXfrmEN RZE——EHECAREMFEM#E FIER
TES o

RIB——FR-F——F ARAUERTEER/ RITH
BEBREARBARBZMRN -
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(b)

The Executive Director serving on the Board and Board
Committee has not drawn any director’s fee in the year.
The director’s fee of each of the Non-executive Directors,
including Independent Non-executive Directors, (2012:
HK$100,000; 2011: HK$100,000) is fixed by the Board
of Directors pursuant to the authority granted by the
shareholders at the Company’s annual general meeting.
Each Non-executive Director, including Independent Non-
executive Director, serving on the Board Committees
receives an additional fee (Audit Committee: 2012:
HK$100,000; 2011: HK$100,000; Remuneration Committee:
2012: HK$50,000; 2011: HK$50,000; Nomination Committee:
2012: HK$50,000; 2011: HK$50,000; Strategy Committee:
2012: HK$50,000; 2011: HK$50,000).

The directors’ remunerations are determined with reference
to directors’ remunerations paid by other companies in
Hong Kong which are of comparable size and business
nature. In addition to the aforesaid, the emolument payable
to the Executive Director is also determined with reference
to the individual’s performance and the Company’s financial
performance.

Five highest paid individuals (b)

The five highest paid individuals during the year include
the Chief Executive Officer and none (2011: none) of the
Directors, details of whose remuneration are set out above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining four (2011:
five) highest paid individuals are set out below:

....................................................................................

SHETGREETER LB ZHTES REABEKR
TREZENS  BUIFNTES(BEBUIRTEZ )2 ES
we&(ZF——F 100,000 : —F——%F :100,000/5 )
HESSRERERARAABREBFACR TETEEMEZ
AR AE 2HEEQETZEQZENIINTES(RE
BUFNITES)JNIBEI N (BREEG : —T——F :
100,000/87C + —Z——4 :100,0008 7T HHEZEE : =%
—— 4 :50,000/87L  —E——F 50,0008 RAZE

€ T "% :50,00087 0 —F——% 50,0008 ¢ &K
MEEE : —T— =% : 50,0008 : —F——%F : 50,000/
) e

EEMD2RBEEMBURBNEBHENDRMNES
MEMEE - o REERNTATEZZHFME - AES
SEBEARBRARAZHBERR -

LuGREHMAL

FARUGRESHFMATERTRER L EARES(ZT——
FE) EMEFRECHIINLEX - HTHAL(ZF——F
I &RSHEMALZBMEFENT

........................................................................

2012 2011

—E—C —T——F

HK$’000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... BETT LLBEIL
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 ~ Z8f R IFIR & F% 10,307 13,802
Retirement scheme contributions iE {R &t 2| it ZX 168 189
Bonuses paid and payable 2 1< J e TE4T 1,654 3,651
Compensation for loss of office B (E & - -
12,129 17,642

....................................................................................
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(c)

The remuneration of the four (2011: five) highest paid

individuals fell within the following bands:

i (—B——% -

............................................................................................................................................................

............................................................................................................................................................

HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000
HK$9,000,001 - HK$9,500,000

2,000,001/ 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001% 7L —3,000,0007% 7T
3,000,001/ 7 —3,500,00078 7T
3,500,001% 7T —4,000,000/8 7T
9,000,001 7T — 9,500,000/ 7T

2012 2011
2= —E——fF
- 4
2 —_
1 —_
1 —_
- 1
4 5

............................................................................................................................................................

Corporate executives’ remuneration

The remuneration of the corporate executives whom are
included in the section headed “Corporate Executives” fell

AETHAEME

HIIR[ RRTHAR |~ BRZATTRARZHENF T
lE -

within the following bands:

............................................................................................................................................................

............................................................................................................................................................

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000
HK$7,000,001 - HK$7,500,000

1,500,001/ 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001 75 — 2,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001 7T — 3,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001 75 — 3,500,000/ 7T
3,500,0018 7T — 4,000,000/ 7T
7,000,001 75 — 7,500,000/ 7T

..............................................................................

The Company’s remuneration policy is established to attract,
motivate and retain high performing individuals so that
they are committed to the success of our business, thereby
enhancing shareholder value. Salaries of employees are
maintained at competitive levels while discretionary bonuses
are granted based on individual and business performance.

The Company has a share option scheme which is designed
to motivate the eligible persons, whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the performance, growth and success
of the Group, to optimize their future contributions to the
Group and reward them for their past contributions and
enable the Group to attract and retain individuals with
experience and ability. The Remuneration Committee
approves the granting of share options and reports such
grants to the Board of Directors. The grant is made based on
individual’s performance and contributions.

2012 2011
—2—= —T——F
- 2
- 2
1 —_
1 —_
1 —_
1 —_
4 4

..............................................................................

AABFTEHMEE - UBE - SBEREBERAEEB AL
FEARAREBBRME  KMAKRFIEE - B THFMRE
REFFANNKTE  RABREAJNETI 2 THRBRELER
BFIL -

ARRREBLENE  SEZBEAHMEEILEFARNE
KEZRE ERNERZABERAL RARANBEERSE
HAKEZARMEERRERECRR - TAPAEBERAR
BEAKBREN AT - FHREEHAERKBRE - L@
EFQEHRAUBRN - ARARBEMNEIZRAREHMET
RE I -
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19. Operating profit 19. EER7F
Operating profit is stated after charging and crediting: R E BRI KAt AT HI S IBETIE
2012 2011
¥ —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... BRIT BRI
Charging & H1B&
Operating lease rentals on land and buildings Tt R IEF v LB EHR S 4,293 2,220
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
HEWR  ERRBBEREVEECER 71 32
Auditors’ remuneration EEIBE | ......oooeeeeeeeeeeeeesesssseseesssnsessessess s sseasesssssens 2389 e 2,253
Crediting 85t A
Dividend income from listed investments | 71% & % 81 A 2,862 2,903
Net rental income from investment properties % & ¥ 218 4 F A 22,061 21,319
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
HENK  BERBEEIIVEEZIE e eeeseeeeses s seeeesseseses s LA 14
20. Finance income 20. AE WA
2012 2011
—E—= —E——
HK$’000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... BRIT LAETT
Finance income B #5142 A
— Interest income on bank deposits 81777 2 2 | B U A 3,319 2,977
— Interest income on available-for-sale financial assets aJ it £ & 7 @& & 7 ¥ 8 U A 1,499 1,494
4,818 4,471

............................................................................................................................................................
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21. Income tax expense 21. FRfg#RBA

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of
16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which Group
operates.

BRMERIAF ARG EARBNIRI6.5%( —F——5F
16.5% ) B K E M o BIMNEIE SRR Z HIAERIEF AL E

ABAN  BARERLEBEHAEBIR 2 RITHEGE

............................................................................................................................................................

2012 2011

k- Lt 3 —ET——%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

B¥TRT BETT

(Restated)

................................................................................................................................................ (E25)

Current income tax 35 B FT 15 /4

— Hong Kong profits tax & /& F| 8%} 37,005 34,604

— Over provision in prior year -4 [ B%8 7 & & (3,454) (3,391)

— Overseas taxation g 4h i T8 424 245
Deferred income tax &L P51

— Other deferred tax credits E b R E T B UL %5 (3,368) (1,776)

— Under provision in prior year FEE 2 7 #& 3,384 472

33,991 30,154

............................................................................................................................................................
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B R KM
The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs $%I2ﬁ$ﬁﬁ SHAIBFMEA R ERRAERAERAR LA
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the ﬁ% AEEMBERANEAEMEE 2 BRE2BEMT
taxation rate applicable to the places of operation of the = KZDT

Company and its subsidiaries as follows:

............................................................................................................................................................

2012 2011
—£g—_C —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥ETT BEFIT
(Restated)
................................................................................................................................................ (FE=3)
Profit before income tax ERATIRBLAI AN | e 379,921 ... 433,005
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%)
B E16.5%( =T ——%F : 16.5% )51 & 62,687 74,746
Income not subject to taxation 78z 5 U A (32,108) (42,143)
Recognition of previously unrecognised temporary difference
BRBTRER 2 ERER (7) )
Effect of different taxation rates in other countries E {th B A fi R 7 £ 21 559
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses &) 5 i@ 1+ K iR 2 HIBE (2,180) (1,640)
Over provision in prior year |+ 2 {58 B & (70) (2,919)
Temporary difference recognised on undistributed profit in associates
R RRRN R ERACERER 632 (297)
Tax losses not recognised K iE:2 7 Fi 18 E518 335 727
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 7 82 E £ B B H 2 B % 2,406 2,177
Withholding tax F830%¢ 424 245
Temporary difference not recognised KR 7 HiF =8 1,863 (746)
Recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax asset
BRABAARBRELERIBEEE (12) (546)
Income tax expense TSB! 33,991 .....2004
22. Profit attributable to shareholders 22. RERELET
The profit of HK$329,059,000 (2011: HK$409,921,000) B 55 FE {5 & 5329,059,000 0 ( =T —— & : 409,921,000
attributable to shareholders included profit of TT)  BREBEARRRIAR ST HRE 2 & F241,080,0004 7T
HK$241,080,000 (2011: HK$121,907,000) dealt with in the (ZZ——% :121,907,0008T) °

Company’s own financial statements.
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23. Dividends 23. &2
(a) Dividends attributable to the year: (a) ERELRKRE :
Company
VN
2012 2011
—E—_f§ —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... _WTT L BETZT
Interim dividend paid, HK3 cents per share (2011: HK4 cents)
BERTHES - SRIBW(ZZ——F : 4}51) 46,828 62,438
Final dividend proposed but not yet recognised, HK4.5 cents per share (2011: HK4 cents)
R AR EENAER  BRASBW(ZZ——F : 4751) 70,248 62,438
117,076 124,876
Note: The proposed final dividend distribution of HK$70,248,000 M B2 ——F+-A=1+—HLEE BERERES
for the year ended 31 December 2012 is to be paid out of the 70,248,000 T E M AR R 2 REBEF| T H -
Company'’s retained profits.
(b) Dividends paid during the year: (b) EREAKRE :
Company
NF
2012 2011
2% —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
................................................................... sWIT L EETZT
Interim dividend in respect of 2012, HK3 cents per share —Z — —FhHfg 2 - FE3H/L 46,828 -
Final dividend in respect of 2011, HK4 cents per share —Z——®EKEIFE - FRR4E(L 62,438 -
Interim dividend in respect of 2011, HK4 cents per share =& ——F R HfE 8. - T4l - 62,438
Final dividend in respect of 2010, HK4 cents per share —ZE—ZF K HRE + FE4E - 62,438
109,266 124,876
24. Earnings per share 24. BB
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is FIREAR R AR TR R A A AR R 5 & 329,059,000
based on the profit for the year attributable to shareholders BT (ZZ——% : 409,921,000 7T) RFEFRNBEEHTZRG
of HK$329,059,000 (2011: HK$409,921,000) and 1,560,945,596 % (= ——4F : 1,560,945,596[% ) 5T & °
1,560,945,596 (2011: 1,560,945,596) shares in issue during
the year.
As at 31 December 2012 there were 9,400,000 share options RZE-—ZF+-A=+—H FEFAAUTRBAQRRG
(2011: 13,000,000 share options) outstanding that enable Frﬁﬁiﬁﬂfﬁzﬁﬁﬁxﬁé%() 400,000 (=ZZ——% : 13,000,000
the holders to subscribe for shares in the Company. These MERE) - ZSEREDBRSERSBEITRERNZR @ &
share options could potentially dilute basic earnings per HREMZINFEERBEER  MAETESRETRFE
share in the future, but were not included in the calculation VWESEEN -

of diluted earnings per share because they are antidilutive
for the years presented.
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25

@

Employee retirement schemes

The Group continues to operate a DB scheme, a DC scheme
and a Top-up scheme. These schemes are exempted
recognised occupational retirement schemes under the MPF
Ordinance. The assets of these schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in two administered trust funds.
Schemes assets are managed by independent professional
investment managers. The Group also operates a MPF
scheme which is a master trust scheme established under
trust arrangement.

Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme is a final salary defined benefit
plan.

Pension costs are assessed using the projected unit credit
method. The pension costs are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income so as to spread the
regular cost over the service lives of employees. A full

25. REBHatE
AEEEERHAAEMN S

TE MG B R = A8l - %

—rﬁiﬂTJ*ETF?@F%M@J%ﬂmZE%ﬁﬁ’ap IR RIREE - %
FHETZEEMMAEEGRESRA  BAREEERY

ﬁﬁﬂ cREFECEEABY
T-EBRESE

(a) REFFHE
REMGF B ARKREMAEN RS -

EERAMIEEE - ASENE
BRIBEBETR LRI X IERTE -

LWiﬁX$%Fﬁ%§Bﬁ5ﬁ% EELDEN M NERA ZERERTH

% SEHRAREEREFHADE -

BIUAERBEEME

éib‘i%}%ﬁlﬁ AREERHZEEA L 2ENE - RIE

BEME L 2 RRERAEELR

FeEEKRERTHE B

valuation based on the projected unit credit method has B EERANERNZATHRAE T Z2ETESHTIA
been carried out by Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited, an FriE v st 2l EEFTBEZEION( T ——4F 1 111%) °
independent qualified actuary, and the pension costs are
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in accordance with their advice. The actuarial
valuations indicate that the Group’s obligations under this
defined benefit scheme are 101% (2011: 111%) covered by
plan assets held by the trustees.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit REMZEAZRELZHET :
obligations are as follows:
2012 2011
—E-_F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... BETT LBEIL
At1January A—A—H 263,727 244,041
Current service cost I8 B i 7 5 2 10,238 9,848
Interest cost F B 2 3,898 7,225
Contributions by plan participants st 2|2 8 A 7 3% 2,626 2,526
Actuarial losses & E18 48,409 14,500
Benefits paid Eﬁﬂﬁﬁ (4,257) (14,413)
At 31 December ¥+~ A=+—H 324,641 263,727

............................................................................................................................................................
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..............................................................................

2012 2011
—Z-_F —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
......................................................................................................................... BRTT LLBETL
At 1January A—HA—H 293,781 326,990
Expected return on plan assets 51 2|4 & ~ 78 i [0 3k 20,384 22,757
Actuarial gains/(losses) & & Wizs / (E18) 17,445 (41,770)
Contributions by plan participants 5t 2|2 8 A 7 {3k 2,626 2,526
Transfer to other retirement funds ## 2 E f:RKE 4 (2,308) (2,309)
Benefits paid & )25 (4,257) (14,413)
At 31 December R+ A =+—H 327,671 293,781
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows REEBERERZSENT :
2012 2011
—E—_F —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... BRI BT
Fair value of plan assets 5 2|8 & 7 AV {& 327,671 293,781
Present value of funded obligations ;T & & 7 ¥ (& (324,641) (263,727)
3,030 30,054
Unrecognised actuarial losses A fE:2 15 & E18 60,101 32,375
Net asset )5 & & 63,131 62,429
The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of R 2EBBRERZSHENT :
comprehensive income are as follows:
2012 2011
—E—_F —E——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... BRIT BT
Current service cost I8 B iR # 5k < 10,238 9,848
Interest cost F| & 5k & 3,898 7,225
Expected return on plan assets =1 2|4 & 7 78 £ [0l iR (20,384) (22,757)
Net actuarial losses/(gains) ¥ B &8 /(U5 ) F 48 3,238 (2,655)
Total income included in staff costs (note 18) &4z A - 25 A 8 TR AR (KizF18) (3,010) (8,339)

..............................................................................

..............................................................................
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The plan assets are invested in unit trusts managed by
independent investment managers. The approximate asset
allocation as at the balance sheet date is as follows:

..............................................................................

FEBEENBURELEEEZENERTARE - REER
ZEERBOEMNT

..............................................................................

2012 2011

—E—= —T——fF

% %

Equity instruments fx A~ T B 73 71
Debt instruments &5 T A 24 27
Cash 4 3 2
100 100

..............................................................................

The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on
market expectation, at the beginning of the period, for
returns net of administration costs, over the entire life of
the related obligations.

The plan has a benchmark asset mix of roughly 70% in
global equities and 30% in bonds and cash.

The actual return on plan assets was a gain of
HK$37,829,000 (2011: loss of HK$19,013,000).

The principal actuarial assumptions were as follows:

..............................................................................

..............................................................................

Discount rate #7135 &

Expected rate of return on plan assets (note) =+ 2|48 &= 78 B [ 3} =& ([fi31)
Expected rate of future salary increases 7 3 % Bi{ 78 Hi 1% & =&

..............................................................................

Note: With the amendment to HKAS19 ‘Employee Benefits’ coming
into effect for accounting period beginning on or after 1
January 2013, expected rate of return on plan assets at year
end would no longer be applicable.
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FEBEEZEROREDZANTSERBAEENERERY
A BHEREMBRITHFAS R E -

DAt REEERAABENTIONZ 2 HRERI0% L EF K
R o

STEIEEZ BB O %A WEE37,829,0008 T (—T——F 1
1819,013,0008 7T) °

TERERRNOT :

..............................................................................

2012 2011
—2—= —E——F

% %

0.60 1.50

N/AFEH 7.00

4.00 4.00

..............................................................................

Miat: mAREBEBGEREIRIEERN | ZBITAR -2 —=
F-A-AHzEOGHHRER  RERNFHUEER
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as
follows:

............................................................................................................................................................

............................................................................................................................................................

Fair value of plan assets 5T 2|8 & 7 A L&
Present value of defined benefit obligation &2 ¥ & F 2 &

Surplus/(Deficit) 224/ (54t

............................................................................................................................................................

Experience gains/(losses) on plan assets
SEBE LR/ (B1)
Experience gains/(losses) on plan liahilities

sEaE ERYE/ (BR

............................................................................................................................................................

Based on an actuarial valuation of the plan as at 1 April 2011,
the Group was recommended by the actuary to suspend
contribution to the DB scheme until 31 March 2014. The
next actuarial valuation that will determine the level of the
Group’s future contribution will be conducted not later than
1 April 2014.

MPF scheme

The Group makes regular contributions of 5% of the
employees’ relevant income (which is subject to a cap of
HK$25,000 (2011: HK$20,000)) to the MPF scheme (“MPF
Contribution”).

Top-up scheme

The Group makes regular contribution of 10% of the
employees’ monthly basic salary (which is subject to a cap of
HK$50,000). Out of the 10% contribution, it is firstly applied
to MPF Contribution and the balance will be made to the
Top-up Scheme.

There were no material forfeited pension scheme
contributions during the current and prior year to reduce
contributions in future years.

Defined contribution scheme

The contributions to the defined contribution pension
scheme are currently at 10-15% of the employees’ monthly
salaries.

There were no material forfeited pension scheme
contributions during the current and prior year to reduce
contributions in future years.

AEERBANEFE 2 SBWT :
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
- "% “EZ2-TH “ZTENGE _—ZTEN\E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BT BT BT
327,671 293,781 326,990 320,361 259,643
(324,641) (263,727) (244,041) (253,033) (285,132)

3,030 30,054 82,949 67,328 (25,489)

17,445 (41,770) (2,220) 78,612 (184,052)

(20,413) 22,254 5,094 (25,417) 93,608
BE-—ER -_T——FNA—BYZA2ET2RBERE B
EMEZAEEN T NF=A=T—HZAEERZAT
FlEmatBlfts e TABEHEBTER _Z—NFMNA—RB#
17 USEEARSE 2 RREFKE -

(h) BESFE
Zlié‘%%TMEEEEM&MH&%%,OOO}%?{:(:%——E :
20,0008 70)) Z5% et EE N EHE R ([aFE S &
) -

() WEarE
AEEREEBAEARE S (LR A50,000/87T) Z10%/EH E
IR o H10% 2 HREFR BREARBESTEER - m
HER AR RS -

AFEER E—FERETRNERERK 2 RS EHAAH
IR BBz MR-
(d) EEMRKTE

EREFERAEFTEZHRBAARE AR Z10%E15% °

AFEER LFEMBEAERCRRZRKES IR
B BEZ K -
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26.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which was approved at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 24 May 2010. Under the Scheme, the
Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) may, at its
discretion, grant options to the eligible persons as defined in
the Scheme (the “Eligible Persons”) to subscribe for shares
of the Company. The basis of eligibility of any of the Eligible
Persons to the grant of any options shall be determined
by the Board from time to time on the basis of their
contribution to the development and growth of the Group.

The period within which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but no
option may be exercised later than 10 years from the date
on which the option is granted. The minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised is
determined by the Board upon the grant of an option. The
amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1.

Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

26. LR ZXH

ARBRBEBREAE([FTE]) YR -_F-FFAA-+ME
ARTMARRRRBEFAG LELERE - REHE - AR
AEFE([EFg )IRBRETMIEZAERAL(AE
BALTDETERE  URBARFKRND - BB THRE
RERBATHASBEERIERZEM  EERSEREMAE

BB EE -

BhREZTERSHE

SERBFET - ERRESTRE

PRGNz ARG THF&RTE - BRETENLATARESS
REHBRERAEEREFFHR - RABRERENZ

RERBIET °

WATTEZ BRESRE REARMETOTEEZZDHEIIN

T

............................................................................................................................................................

No. of shares in respect

Weighted average exercise

of options granted price per share

RHBREZROEE SERMEFHTER
2012 2011 2012 2011
- -—T——4% IB-Z§ <—T——F
HK$ HK$
.................................................................................................................................. B e BT
Outstanding at 1 January A — A — H i R 171E 13,000,000 - 1.484 -
Granted during the year RER% H — 26,000,000 - 1.647
Exercised during the year ;A& R {T{E - - - -
Cancelled during the year 74 AT 4 - (13,000,000) - 1.810
Lapsed during the year 7 4F (A 25 3% (3,600,000) - 1.484 -
Outstanding at 31 December R+—=A=+—BHK/TF 9,400,000 13,000,000 1.484 1.484
Exercisable at 31 December ¥+ = A =+—RA 7 F17{& 1,782,000 - 1.484 -

............................................................................................................................................................

FABBEMBLREERL  TEIEH -

No options were granted, exercised or cancelled during the
year.
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Options outstanding at the end of the year have the RELRRITE 2 BREZ ERmT ¢

following terms:

............................................................................................................................................................

2012 2011

No. of shares No. of shares

in respect in respect

Exercise of options of options

price/share granted granted

HK$ —E-"§ —E-——F

Tranche Exercise period ER{TEE bednl g R R
............................................. mETEM ... BT ZROME  oEAEA
Continuous contract employees 1 19/07/2012-27/11/2021 1.484 1,296,000 1,872,000
BEAHNET 2 19/10/2012-27/11/2021 1.484 486,000 702,000
3 19/01/2013-27/11/2021 1.484 486,000 702,000

4 19/04/2013-27/11/2021 1.484 486,000 702,000

5 19/07/2013-27/11/2021 1.484 694,000 910,000

6 19/10/2013-27/11/2021 1.484 645,000 897,000

7 19/01/2014-27/11/2021 1.484 645,000 897,000

8 19/04/2014-27/11/2021 1.484 645,000 897,000

9 19/07/2014-27/11/2021 1.484 645,000 897,000

10 19/10/2014-27/11/2021 1.484 739,000 1,027,000

11 19/01/2015-27/11/2021 1.484 739,000 1,027,000

12 19/04/2015-27/11/2021 1.484 739,000 1,027,000

13 19/07/2015-27/11/2021 1.484 739,000 1,027,000

14 19/10/2015-27/11/2021 1.484 104,000 104,000

15 19/01/2016-27/11/2021 1.484 104,000 104,000

16 19/04/2016-27/11/2021 1.484 104,000 104,000

17 19/07/2016-27/11/2021 1.484 104,000 104,000

9,400,000 13,000,000

............................................................................................................................................................
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No share options have been granted during the year ended
31 December 2012. The weighted average fair value of the
share options granted during the year ended 31 December
2011 is HK$0.495. The fair value of the share options was
calculated by applying a hinomial option pricing model. The
major assumptions used in the model are:

..............................................................................

..............................................................................

Share price at date of grant # | A B 7 J% (B
Exercise price {7{£(8

Expected volatility 78 #1518 0

Annual risk-free interest rate % & 4 ) & i

Life of options B f% 1 & H3

Dividend yield J&% 8 Uz i

..............................................................................

Notes:

(i)  The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected
share price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily
average share prices of the Company over approximately four
years immediately preceding the grant date. The calculation is
based on the assumption that there is no material difference
between the expected volatility over the whole life of the
options and the historical volatility of the underlying shares.

(ii) The risk free rate is assumed to be equal to the yield of Hong
Kong Exchange Fund Bills/Notes over the exercise period near
the grant dates.

(iii) Dividend yield was estimated based on the Company’s most
recent interim and final dividend paid and the prevailing share
price at the grant date of the options.

In order to capture employee risk aversion, we model the
early exercise behaviour of the employees by assuming that
exercise takes place whenever a) an option has vested and
b) the stock price reaches 200% above the exercise price.
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BE - T——F+-A=+-BUEEBRERLEMBRE -
B T——F+-A=Z+-BIEERL 2 EREMETS
ANFEE0.495BTT - BREANFEIER —BAABRETE
BREE - ZERZETERROT

..............................................................................

19 July 2011 28 November 2011
............ =E-CEEATAR ZSooFt-A-TAR
HK$1.81 HK$1.45
1.8 7T 145387
HK$1.81 HK$1.484
181 TT 1.48478 7T
43% 44%

2.26% 1.39%

10 years 10 years
104 104

3% 5.5%

..............................................................................

() NEHRERGzREZHEZREDERARAREER
HRBAAONFE 2 BRAFYRELRENNE - ZET
ARBRREABREFH 2 RARELEERND 2 BEKRE
TEERER -

(i EERNERZA/VERREABARNBETERZEE
SMEE S RENE

(i) BBWETIRBEARARIMRN 2+ 8 R KRR SR BEE
REHE B ZBRERE -

REEBTIRERBRER  BRABERIRETETAERN
REREa) B EERB Kb RN ERETEE200%A LHER
T BRI -
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27. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash  27. &R &RB RN
Flows
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from (a) RERBAHLEEELEZHSHER !
operations:
2012 2011
—g—- —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... BETT BRI
Operating profit 484 Z 7| 368,330 447,042
Fair value gain on investment properties & & #7 3% A P {E W (170,650) (237,650)
Depreciation and amortisation 37 & % # §4 55,027 52,588
Dividend income from listed investments F 77 1% & f% 2 A (2,862) (2,903)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
HEME BERSEREVEEB]E,/ (K&E) 64 @)
Pension income R®RAKE WA (3,010) (8,339)
Transfer of DB plan assets to other retirement funds
REMNRFEZHAEEEERZHMBRRES 2,308 2,309
Employee share-based compensation benefits JAR%# = {7 € E Bl £ & A 2,345 402
Translation reserve transferred to operating profit on termination of a foreign operation
BIEBINEBEALLRBT OELREE 5,742 -
Decrease in amounts due to associates & (< Bt & /A &) T IB 7 (210) (285)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories F &5 4/ (3&41) 3,270 (5,595)
Increase in accounts receivable J& U 2518 # 1 (30,938) (48,606)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
BNER - ke REMEKFRIEL N (5,131) (150)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
FERRIE R ES aEEm Ohd) 21,856 (4,057)
Increase in subscriptions in advance T8 £T R &% 1,819 1,829
Cash generated from operations 2@ &4 7R & 247,960 196,578

............................................................................................................................................................

SCMP Group ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ]. 6 ].



© Audited Financial Statements @&EEHEEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR T

(b) Cash and cash equivalents (h) BeRBELEE
Group Company
£ 28

2012 2011 2012 2011
g —T—% IB-Zf —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
................................................................................... RWTE  SETL MMIR BETR
Cash at bank and in hand 81T X F3EIR & 190,654 153,261 812 812

Short-term bank deposits with original maturity of less than

three months

FREAE=EAUTHEHRITER 153,461 171,557 - -
344,115 324,818 812 812
Less: Restricted bank deposits & : $£17FR 417 2k (25,258) - - -
318,857 324,818 812 812

28.

............................................................................................................................................................

The Group has an undrawn banking facility which was
secured by cash deposit of EUR2,464,400 (HK$25,258,000)
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objective when managing capital is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its businesses as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group structures its capital with due consideration to
risk. The Group manages and adjusts its capital structure
in the light of the changes in economic conditions and risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, repurchase
shares of the Company from shareholders, issue new shares,
or increase or reduce borrowings.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s net debt-to-capital
ratio is zero (2011: zero). For the purpose of calculating the
net debt-to-capital ratio, the Group defines net debt as total
debt (which includes bank overdrafts) less cash and bank
balances, and capital as all components of equity.
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28

AEEREE-_ZE——F+ A=+ HUEFEHBREHARRERN
$R1TRLA F12,464,40080 7T (25,258,0008 70 ) 2 B & F A AEIE
ﬁ °

BExRRER

AEMEBEA EEZABRRASEALNBEGELE
B fTE MR ARRRAERR AL MARABAL
RAFIE -

AEERERERARETEELAEAGERE - ARBARTLE
RAZBIEREBEEZRRSHERRBRAEEARE - B
BERIABHEARE  FASEERBRN TREZKER
B MBRBEARARS  BITHRIENIRDEK -

RZB-—ZF+-A=+—R FEBFAEEFLERT
(ZF——5: %) - HAEFEBEALXME - ARERF
BETEABEFRARBE(BRRTE) AR RRITHES B
KZER RS ZFIEAKEN -
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Operating lease commitments

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had future minimum
lease payment under non-cancelable operating leases for
land and buildings as follows:

29.

EERRARE
R-Z——f+-A=+—0  AEERELHRETZFA
BHEEREZARBEREFHOT :

............................................................................................................................................................

2012 2011

—£—C —T——F

HK$’000 HK$’000
......................................................................................................................... _RIT BRI
Not later than one year T #8:@—4F 10,090 2,052
Later than one year but not later than five years #2:8 —F B B AE 24,314 1,422
Later than five years B i& L F 1,728 -
36,132 3,474

............................................................................................................................................................

During the year, the Group has subleased part of an office
under operating lease to external parties. Total future
minimum sublease payments expected to be received under
non-cancelable subleases as at 31 December 2012 were
HK$1,303,000 (2011: Nil).

FR - AEBUCLEHEEHALOHLAETIINZEME - B
RIZ——F+ - A=+ B A HES EEFURERERRE
DL E1,303,0008T(ZF——F 1 T) o

Capital Commitments 30. BXKIE
.............................................................................................................................. ST
—E-CF —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... BWTT EETH

Capital commitments for property, plant and equipment #) 3 - #28 N5 2 & A

Contracted, but not provided for 2 5] 4{8 & % 49,015 26,979
Authorised, but not contracted for B #t /& B R ET4) 63,621 47,655
112,636 74,634

Business combination 31 EBSH

On 3 July 2012, the Group acquired 70% of the issued share
capital of SCMP Hearst Hong Kong Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, for
HK$75,375,000 (EUR7,700,000).

As a result of the acquisition, the Group added premium
titles with international brand recognition to its portfolio of
magazine titles with similar target audience to its existing
readership thereby enabling the Group to gain economies
of scale from its existing sales and advertising platform.
The acquisition also enhanced the Group’s online presence,
especially in women’s lifestyle portals. Furthermore, the
acquisition offered the Group the opportunity to work co-
operatively with an existing partner instead of competing
directly with them for market share of magazines which
share similar audiences. The goodwill of HK$38,105,000
arising from the acquisition is attributable to acquired
economies of scale from combining the operations of the
Group and SCMP Hearst Hong Kong Limited. None of the
goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income
tax purpose.

RZE——F+ A=A KEELL75375000% (7,700,000
BT ) WBESCMP Hearst Hong Kong Limited (— IR &&= Ak
SRAERAR)HIT0%E BT

WEEETKE  AEBEEERTIMAES 2 EMARFER
MEMEEZELETY HEREEAAEE BB EEFE
W ML AEESUAREREHERESEFARBEEN
wo WEEBENURASNEBZB LB BRI ZHERE
EZ AP o ptoh  WEEEAASERMKE - THERE
BHEZAE MIEREEHEARUBEENRETEEEERL
EEHT  ARBSBEELSNEE 381050008 0 2ERN
72 B 2 SCMP Hearst Hong Kong Limited 48 & & §f 10 48 B W 25
A8 - EEMEERNE SR HNBRAGER
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The following table summarises the consideration paid for
SCMP Hearst Hong Kong Limited, the fair value of assets
acquired, liabilities assumed and the non-controlling interest
at the acquisition date.

..............................................................................

TR AR U B HI A 5 SCMP Hearst Hong Kong Limited £
B FBEZEELATE FIREZEE  RIEFHHEEZZ
BE:

..............................................................................

2012
—E—-_F
HK$’000
................................................................................................................................................ RRTx
Consideration {{g :
At3July2012 R—E——%+tB=H
Total consideration — Cash #{X{F - R & 75,375
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
EHFEBZIRSERFMARAREIEH
Customer relationship (note 7) 2 B8{& (Mi:E7) 61,247
Tangible fixed assets (note 5) A & £ & & (M 3F5) 1,985
Other intangible assets (note 7) H fh @ 2 & & (HI317) 72
Prepayment & < Z 18 607
Cash and cash equivalent & RIR &% 231
Unearned revenue 7 Bt EUK 25 (782)
Deferred tax liability (note 15) {E R & f& (Fif3E15) (10,117)
Total identifiable net assets 7] & Bl & & {8 6 53,243
Non-controlling interest 3F#2 | 14 # %5 (15,973)
Goodwill (note 7) B (Fft5E7) 38,105
................................................................................................................................................... 75,375
HK$’000
................................................................................................................................................ ERTT
Consideration (& 75,375
Less: Cash and cash equivalent of the subsidiary acquired Ji : W EMBARINE S RESSE (231)
Net consideration paid B 1 ¢ {&;$ & 75,144

..............................................................................

Non-controlling interest in SCMP Hearst Hong Kong Limited
was measured at 30% ownership proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of identifiable net assets acquired.

Acquisition-related costs of HK$2,572,000 have heen
charged to other operating expenses in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2012.

The revenue included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income since 3 July 2012 contributed by
SCMP Hearst Hong Kong Limited was HK$59,191,000. SCMP
Hearst Hong Kong Limited also contributed profit before
non-controlling interest of HK$10,152,000 over the same
period.
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SCMP Hearst Hong Kong Limited 8 3E#% HI 1 i a5 1 A FTULEE 2
AHAFEECERSEN0%EFRBRAHLAE -

U ERRK A E2,572,0008 T EREE T ——F+=
A+ BLEFEZEA2ARSRTPMEMCERTHM
(Sﬁ—;o

BE-Z——F+tAZHEBEENFE2EKZERASCMP Hearst

Hong Kong Limited %5 28 8 U 5 459,191,000/ 7T © SCMP Hearst

Hong Kong Limited 777 Bl B35 210,152,000 7T K FE 12 Il 1 42
mAIRA e
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32

(a)

(b)

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
particularly interest rate, currency, price, liquidity and credit
risks. Where appropriate, the Group’s risk management
policies seek to minimise potential adverse effects of these
risks on the financial performance of the Group. The policies
for managing these risks are summarised below.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk arises from cash
balances placed with authorised financial institutions, which
generate interest income for the Group. The Group manages
its interest rate risk by placing such balances on various
maturities and interest rate terms.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had short-term bank
deposits of HK$179,378,000 (2011: HK$247,674,000) with
an effective interest rate of 1.8% (2011: 1.3%). It is estimated
that a general increase/(decrease) of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/(decrease) the Group’s profit for the year and total
equity by approximately HK$1,794,000.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the interest-bearing
financial instruments in existence at that date.

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group has an investment in debt instruments classified
as available-for-sale financial assets. The investment carries
a fixed coupon payment and thus, exposes the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. The Group limits this risk by
implementing strict investment policy. Any investment of
significant amount must be approved by the Chief Executive
Officer and the Board of Directors.

At 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of the debt
instruments was HK$26,750,000, implying a yield of 2.84%.
It is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points in yield, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group’s total equity by approximately
HK$845,000/HK$883,000 respectively. The change in yield
would not have any impact on the Group’s profit or loss
as the investment has been classified as available-for-sale
financial assets.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the interest-bearing
financial instruments in existence at that date.

32.

(a)

(b)

erERRER
ZKEIZ%ﬁ“Eﬁyﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂ B BRIRFE 8% fﬂ%
//lu@jéff&fm,\ B REBZEBREERKEEEER
CEFIERER M@EZ’EﬁlifTK%IEM‘QEEEZ%@‘
ﬁ%:’é%ﬂi ZERBEBERBAMT -
ETREFEEE

AEEZRERENEZERREFINBITCHRBEZRS
g TAAEETRAEMRA - $‘EEIL15H7§Z%%§§§LAW\
A RMEERER T AEEEN KRR -

RZE—ZF+ZA=+—8 FXEEZEHROIERAE
179,378,000/ 7L ( ZZ — —4F : 247,674,000/ 7T) * BB F| =
51.8%(ZF——F : 1.3%) 1%@%&%%%%/(?%@)1001
HE - MABEMERERSTE  AEFTAEEFEERN LA
SIS, CRL ) 491,794,000/ 7T

TRAFREAMDBRAXLEHERNEEREL  YEEARN

FZBEGFEZTESRTIA -

DPEREERR

AEEZBEBTARENBATHEEZSREE - ARER
BEERAMEMNR AU LAKREAZ D FEMNERR - &
EERBERBEREBNERZEAR - ENEREAZKEA
ARTRBIARESTGHE -

RZE—ZF+-_RF=Z+—H BEBEIEZEHAEA
26,750,000 77 W X 52.84% o MR EBERES AR
100 &S - MATEEMEHEHIE  AIfFTASEEAER
BARIRA /1 IN4)845,0005% 7T ,/883,000 7T A 55
DEANHEEZSHEE  MNEXEHHAEE 2B
SEIATE-

LRBREIM DB EZEZHEAEEAEL  YCEAR
EZHCHFEZAEERMIA -
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(c)

(d

Currency risk

The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group are
denominated predominantly in Hong Kong Dollars, United
States Dollars and Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group’s only
significant exposure to foreign exchange risk arises from its
short-term bank deposits in RMB.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had RMB of
HK$78,353,000. If the RMB had strengthened/weakened by
10% against Hong Kong Dollars with all other variables held
constant, it would increase/decrease the pre-tax profit for
the year by HK$7,835,000.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in exchange rate had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied to the short-term
deposits held at that date.

Equity price risk

The Group has investments in shares of companies listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited which are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets in the
financial statements. These shares are mainly constituents
of the Hang Seng Composite Index (“HSCI”). The market
values of these investments are affected by, amongst others,
changes in market prices as a result of changes in global
economic conditions, macro and micro economic factors
affecting the country where the investments are quoted, and
factors specific to the investee companies.

The fluctuations in market prices due to the above factors
are unforeseen. The Group monitors changes in these
factors, and responds to them as and when appropriate and
necessary.

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that with a 10%
increase in HSCI, and with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s investment revaluation reserve and total equity
would increase by approximately HK$33,820,000 (2011:
HK$39,592,000), while a 10% decrease in HSCI would result
in a decrease in the Group’s investment revaluation reserve
and total equity by approximately HK$1,238,000 (2011:
HK$10,284,000).

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the reasonably possible changes in the stock market
index had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the availahle-for-sale financial assets in existence
at that date. It is also assumed that the fair values of the
Group’s investments would change in accordance with
the historical correlation with the relevant stock market
index and that none of the Group’s investments would be
considered impaired as a result of a reasonably possible
decrease in the relevant stock market index.
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(c)

(d)

EWER

AEECREENRGREBERNET  EXRARB(AR
B2Y o AEBEARZNE-EAIMNEERERRBEARK
ENEMRITERELNAR -

R-Z——F+-A=+—8 A£ETH78,353,0008T2
ARBEGET - MARERBBIT EH/ TE10%  MEMEH
HEAAE S AIRFEERAAFEEIN,5H7,83500087T

Lz BREAMIBREXZHCNEEAFLERCEAR
ZARBZERERMERE -

RERR

ARERBEBAMERHMARRA LT ZARZENL - 1
FBRERTBEERRAURLEZEREE - AERHTIEARE
EEAEB(TBARAERZHNK - REREZWEDLR
FREARYE  HPeH  a2REERRZmER TS
BREL FEREMERRZEZBIMBEERZARAER
- WNCIPAS IS E S

MRS M ERRBHNER  EAEEEE T
EREREZEL NEEERBERFLLDE -

R-ZE——F+-A=+—08 WELLEAEHLF10% M
FIEEMESGETE  NAEBE s RESHRERBERS
8 014933,820,000/8 L ( = F ——4F © 39,592,000 L) * W8
ERAEETRIN  AXEEZEESHRBERARESER
1 #91,238,000/8 70 ( 2 ——4F 110,284,000 7T) °

ZHRENMIBREFTSEBNEEAC R LR E R
g YCERBRNEXACREZAREEZEREE - IME
BRAEEZREZAFESREEABESTHERZESL
HEMES MASBE REYBERNABESTHER AR
ATBE T B KR ARIE ©
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(e)

0]

Liquidity risk (e)

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with financial
liabilities. The Group’s objective in managing this risk is to
maintain a balance between the continuity and the flexibility
of funding through the use of bank loans and overdraft, if
necessary. In addition, banking facilities have been put in
place for contingency purposes.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s financial
liahilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates as at the
balance sheet date) and the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay:

...................................................................................

Loan from a non-controlling

RBEEER

MBETRREASERETESBAGHEZZBEEER
Bomk - AREERZRRZBEEDEBEARITERRE
X HBESEEMRBEEE I FE(MER) - ki AKE
MELHRITEENETE 25 -

TRIFRBEERAKESBAGBZHTANMRFRE &
REENAFTRZRERE(BERAEHNEHET 2 HEMN
o RERFBNE  MEREERZNE) RAKEAXN
FHEZEFEH

.........................................................................

Accounts payable and

shareholder accrued liabilities
FERFIMBRERZCER EfRERENAE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—2-—_-5 —T——5 IZB-Z§& —T——%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
................................................................................... _MIT BRI EBRIXT BETT
Within 1 year or on demand — 4 Ak 1% sk 9,000 - 71,232 34,535
More than 1 year but less than 2 years #:8 —F {8 VAR E - - - -
More than 2 years but less than 5 years #2818 LR FF - - - -
Total contractual undiscounted cash flow
BREHNATRAZR S RERH 9,000 - 71,232 34,535
Carrying amount ERE{& 9,000 - 71,232 34,535
Credit risk fH EERR

The Group’s credit risk arises mainly from its bank deposits,
accounts receivable and debt instrument. To mitigate the
risk arising from banks, the Group places its deposits with a
number of authorised financial institutions.

The Group manages its credit risk associated with accounts
receivable through the application of credit approvals, credit
ratings and monitoring procedures. The Group also obtains
bankers’ guarantees and cash deposits as collateral from
certain customers.

Credit sales are only made to customers with appropriate
credit history or high credit standing while sales to new
customers or customers of low credit standing are usually
made on an advance payment or cash on delivery basis.

ARBZEERRIBAREBERTEN  BURRBEREBT
A - AEEREERERRBERT 22 BEE - LRERSE
RIT 2B -

AEEERARAEERL  FENAREERFSHE B8
HENGERBZEERR - ARETRBRGRITERIRSR
SERETEPARRAZER -

AEEEAFRAARHEECBIBSEENRIEPENTR
B HURHEFPIEEFAREZER BRRAELNTRK
EHNFAAETRS -
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(8

In order to minimise the credit risk arising from investment
in debt instruments, the Group only selects issuers with high
credit ratings.

At the balance sheet date, there is no concentration of credit
risk as the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 35%
(2011: 32%) of total accounts receivable balance only.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are
set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Fair value estimation

The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value. The Group classifies fair value measurements
using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of
the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

— Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liahilities (level 1).

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

The fair values of the available-for-sale financial assets as
at 31 December 2012 are disclosed in note 10. All of these
financial assets are categorised in level 1. The fair value is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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Subsidiaries and Associates
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and the
Group’s principal associates at 31 December 2012 are as

follows:

Subsidiaries

............................................................................................................................................................

............................................................................................................................................................

Brilliant Star Printing Services
Limited

Coastline International Limited

Lyton Investment Limited

Macheer Properties Limited

Mai Xin Advertising Communications
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. #
BHESER(LR)ERLR:

Recruitment Consulting Networks

Limited

SCMP (1994) Limited

SCMP Hearst Hong Kong Limited

SCMP Hearst Publications Limited

SCMP Magazines Publishing (HK)
Limited

Place of incorporation/
registration and operations
(Kind of legal entity)
B/ BMREXME
(EELERR)

Hong Kong

N

The Commonwealth of The
Bahamas
BB R

The Commonwealth of The
Bahamas
BB R

The British Virgin Islands
ERERRES

The People’s Republic of China
(Wholly Foreign-owned
Enterprise)

REE AR LA
NEBELE)

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
N

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BE
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B2 EREHED

Nominal value

of issued/registered
share capital
BRT /B

Ordinary HK$2
LER2E T

Ordinary US$2
LTdkoET

Ordinary US$2
LdkoET

Ordinary US$1
LEkiEr

Registered capital
1S$3,500,000
AfER
3,500,000% T

Ordinary HK$100,000
LBA%100,000% T

Ordinary HK$2
LEMR2E T
Ordinary HK$100,000
LiBM%100,000% T
Ordinary HK$10,000
T ifM10,000/8 T

Ordinary HK$10,000
EifM10,000/8 T

AlZFBT
Proportion held
BELE
Direct  Indirect
Ei& H%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
100% -
- 70%
- 70%
- 100%
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Provision of printing
services

T ED I AR 75
Property holding
NERE

Property holding
NERE

Property holding
NERE

Advertising agent
BERE

Employment agent

RERE

Investment holding
REERK

Magazine publishing
MR

Magazine publishing
MR

Magazine publishing
MR
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............................................................................................................................................................

............................................................................................................................................................

SCMP Magazines Publishing Limited
HEFRTMERERAA

SCMP.com Holdings Limited #

Shanghai Hu Ying Advertising
Co., Ltd. *
LBRRBEARAA!

Shanghai Nan Hong Information
Services Co., Ltd. #

LEEEERREERARS

South China Morning Post
Publishers Limited
BEFRORERAA

South China Morning Post (S)
Pte Ltd

Sunny Bright Development Limited
HHBERERAF

Sunny Success Development
Limited
MR ERERAF
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Place of incorporation/
registration and operations
(Kind of legal entity)
B #EMREXME
(BELERER)

Hong Kong
e

The British Virgin Islands
KBEARES

The People’s Republic of China
(Wholly Foreign-owned
Enterprise)

SEYNEF il
(EBERE)

The People’s Republic of China
(Wholly Foreign-owned
Enterprise)

SEYNEF il
(EBERE)

Hong Kong
e

Singapore

s

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
e

Nominal value
of issued/registered
share capital

BRT /iR

Ordinary HK$10,000
L BA%10,00078 T

Ordinary US$1
EBIRIZET

Registered capital
1S$2,100,000
AMER
2,100,000% T

Registered capital
1US$5,500,000
AMER
5,500,000 7T

Ordinary
HK$201,000,000
L@
201,000,000/ T

Ordinary S$3
LR
Ordinary HK$2
L@ T

Ordinary HK$2
LRERAT

Proportion held
BELE

Direct  Indirect
B &
- 100%
100% -
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Publication and
advertising
iR R ES

Investment holding
REER

Advertising agent
BERE

Provision of consulting
and advisory service

BR AR A S R RS

Newspaper and
magazine publishing
WE REFELR

Advertising agent
BERE

Property holding
nERE

Property holding
nERE
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............................................................................................................................................................

Company

Place of incorporation and
operations

BIikERMBE

Percentage

of equity

Nominal value  attributable
of issued share  to the Group
capital EEMMEE
ERTRFEE BFEIL

Nature of business

............................................................................................................................................................

Dymocks Franchise Systems (China)
Limited #

The Post Publishing Public Company
Limited #

Hong Kong
B8

Thailand
RE

# The accounts of these companies were not audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong or other
PricewaterhouseCoopers International member firms.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
and associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the
Directors, principally affected the results of the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries and associates would, in
the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Ordinary 45%
HK$7,700,000
7,700,000/ 7T

Ordinary 21.3%
Baht500,000,000
LA
500,000,0003% %k

Bookshop operation
REEE

Newspaper and
magazine publishing

HE MR

# BERFZKEBUHHEEELBKERTNELS LA
M ERFKEE N F BB R 2 A #FE -

EERR ULERIIZARAMBLR

ARAREEZBERRY

AEEFAXERERYE  FEAKEFEEERLA - &

£ HIIAMNERTREEA

fERHIIK -

AZHFMEMEERRR
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(a)

(b)

Related Party Transactions

Kerry Media Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, is the immediate holding company of the
Company. Kerry Group Limited, a company incorporated in
the Cook Islands, is the ultimate holding company of Kerry
Media Limited. The directors regard Kerry Group Limited
as the ultimate holding company of the Company as of the
balance sheet date.

Transactions with Kerry Group

Significant transactions with Kerry Group Limited and
its group of subsidiaries (“Kerry Group”) and associated
companies are as follows:

3. MBEAR &

(a)

Kerry Media Limited( —FR RBHEB R ESFMA LR F)
BARRNRZ BRG] o Kerry Group Limited (—REI ARl 72 B
Bz 2 A F)) BKerry Media Limited 2 AR A F » 1
“ER - EEEKerry Group Limited 7R R T Z S BRIEIR AT ©

BKerry Groupz X %

Kerry Group Limited &2 EL [ & 72 7] ([Kerry Group |) fEF & A F
BAQNBZERRGMT

............................................................................................................................................................

2012 2011
—E—= —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... BRIT LEETT
Rendering of services 12t R 7&

— Advertising revenue E4& & 1,619 1,393
— Magazines and other publications production service fee ¥ % & Efh T 2UE 7 IRFEE 13,136 13,412
14,755 14,805

Balances arising from transactions with Kerry Group (b) EZKerry GroupiETR B 2 &tk
2012 2011
—E-CF —T——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... ABTE ML
Receivables arising from advertising services E & R FTE 4 2 JEW R X 193 148
Receivables arising from magazine production services 2 55 ZEAR S FT E £ 2 FEURBR 20 3,383 5,872
3,576 6,020

............................................................................................................................................................
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(e)

Key management personnel compensation () XEEEBABZHS
2012 2011
-5 T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... BRI BRI
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 3 & & £ b 55 B8 & 18 7 34,220 31,859
Termination benefits X |- & 4918 ¥ 260 910
Employee share-based compensation benefits JA J&# = {5 7 & B H B 18 I 1,205 244
Post-employment benefits iE K& 1& 7 565 500
36,250 33,513

............................................................................................................................................................

Investment in guaranteed notes issued by a related party

In June 2009, the Group acquired guaranteed notes of
US$3,000,000 in the secondary market at a consideration
of US$3,057,000 (equivalent to HK$23,719,000). The notes
were issued by Gain Silver Finance Limited, an indirect
subsidiary of Kerry Group Limited, on 25 August 2006. They
bear a coupon interest of 6.375% and will mature in 2016.
The fair values of the notes were HK$26,750,000 as at 31
December 2012 (31 December 2011: HK$25,652,000).

Transactions with HCI group

Hearst Communications Inc. (“HCI”), a company formed
under the laws of the State of Delaware in the United States
of America exercises, through its subsidiaries, significant
influence over SCMP Hearst Publications Limited and
SCMP Hearst Hong Kong Limited, both indirect subsidiaries
of the Company. During the year, the Group has the
following significant transactions with HCI and its group of
subsidiaries:

(d) RERBEHRAMBTZERRR

(e)

RZZZNFANA - NEBRE TSR ES057,000E T
(%14 23,719,000% 7T ) B A 3,000,000% T Z ERZ I o
2% % Z 92 @ Kerry Group Limited 2 & 3 Mf B 2 &) Gain Silver
Finance Limited R —ZEXNFENA -+ HB T EEFAE
F6375%  BR_ZE—RFHH ZEER-_T—-F+=A
=+—B2zRAFE26,750,000 (- FE——F+-_A=+—
B : 25,652,000 7T) °

BEHOREZRZ

Hearst Communications Inc.([HCIJ) = —FE B 15 3 Bl A 2 1
FERIANT  EBENEB AR ESCMP Hearst Publications
Limited &2 SCMP Hearst Hong Kong Limited (M & 13 A& A &1#)
BEMNBARAEATYE - FN - AEEHRHOKREWB AR
BUTEERS .

............................................................................................................................................................

2012 2011

—E—_F —T——%F

HK$’000 HK$'000

......................................................................................................................... BRIT LEETT

Rendering of services 12t fR7&

— Royalty expenses EF|F 9,361 6,804
— Payment in respect of advertising sales/agency agreements

ELHE REBZZEXK 4,862 -

14,223 6,804

............................................................................................................................................................

SCMP Group ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ]. 7 3



© Audited Financial Statements @&EEHEEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR T

(f) Balances arising from transactions with HCI group () BHOEEXR S &tk
.............................................................................................................................. S
—EB—_F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
......................................................................................................................... BWTT LLBETL
Royalty expenses payable [t ZF5 2,706 2,027
Amount payable in respect of advertising sales/agency agreements
RESHE RERBEZENREHE 686 -
............................................................................................................................. 3392 . 2927
35. Approval of the Financial Statements 35. MBHRERZHtE
The financial statements were approved by the Board of ROBRRON —_E—=F=A-_+HEEEFT ek -

Directors on 25 March 2013.
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